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DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
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603-271-9196  1-800-852-3345 Ext. 9196
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April 2, 2014

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Council

State House P
Concord, New Hampshire 03301 16{)@ ?0[);/’79{ WA

REQUESTED ACTION % ¢ dap M
(¢ ,

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Office of Human Services, Bureau of
Homeless and Housing Services to enter into agreements, three of which are retroactive, with the
vendors listed in the table below to provide permanent and transitional housing program(s) to facilitate
the movement of homeless individuals to permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency through the
Federal Continuum of Care program in an amount not to exceed $1,089,408 effective the dates
indicated in the table below upon Governor and Executive Council approval through the completion
dates indicated in the table below.

Vendor Vendor Location Effective Date Completion Amount
Number Date
Center for Lite 174116-P001 Derry 07/01/2014 06/30/2015 |  $504,134
anagement.
Community Bridges 155658-B001 Franklin 07/01/2014 06/30/2015 $113,896
Community Partners of
Strafford County 177200-B004 Dover 07/01/2014 06/30/2015 $40,527
Families in Transition Retroactive to:
157730-B001 Concord 04/01/2014 06/30/2015 $127,746
Harbor Homes . Retroactive to:
155358-B001 Statewide 01/01/2014 12/31/2014 $88,406
Lakes Region Mental
Health d/b/a Genesis 154480-B001 Laconia 07/01/2014 06/30/2015 $91,051
Behavioral Health
ccacoastMental Health 1 174089-p001 | Portsmouth 07/01/2014 6/30/2015 $13,918
. Cheshire & . .
Southwestern Community 177511-001 Sullivan Retroactive to: 12/31/2014 $109,730
Services, Inc. . 01/01/2014
Counties
Total: $1,089,408

Funds to support this request are available in the following accounts in SFY 2014 and 2015 with
the ability to adjust encumbrances without Governor and Council approval in each of the State Fiscal
Years through the Budget Office if needed and justified.
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05-95-42-423010-7927 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SVCS,
HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, HOMELESS & HOUSING, HOUSING- SHELTER PROGRAM

See attachment for fiscal details and areas served.

EXPLANATION

The Department has participated in over twenty (20) rounds of disbursing federal awards to
local communities. Experience has informed the Department in the ability to estimate the following
year's grant awards based on the community-based agencies’ previous year’s applications to the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development. Therefore, some of the grant awards that are
contracted are contracted prospectively with the intention of amending those contracts needing
adjustment when the federal government provides official notification of the dollar amounts awarded to
the community-based agencies. The awards that are issued retroactively result in the community-
based programs receiving funds much later than when the funds are actually needed for program
operations. Funds awarded retroactively can result in New Hampshire citizens who are homeless, or at
risk of becoming homeless, not receiving the assistance when it is actually needed.

Regardless of when the communities applied for the funds, the Department cannot begin
contracts with the community-based agencies prior to their current contracts end date. Therefore, this
package contains contracts with various effective dates, including three that are retroactive. Further,
some community-based agencies applied for more than one grant due to the locations to which the
funds awarded will be allocated. These vendors include Families in Transition, Harbor Homes and
Southwestern Community Services. These particular vendors provide homeless services to several
towns and cities while operating a main office for the administration of the funds that are awarded to
individual community-based agencies.

Three attached vendor agreements are retroactive because grant awards to communities were
subject to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development application and award process.
Communities seeking funds from the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Continuum
of Care program must apply directly to the federal agency where their applications are scored by the
federal program based on criteria set forth by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Continuum of Care program. The New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services is
notified by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development Continuum of Care program of the
grant awards several months after the federal program receives the communities’ applications, which in
some cases causes the awards to be allocated retroactively. Although law does not mandate the
Continuum of Care program, the community-based agencies must follow the federal process to access
the funds, which are distributed by the states.

This package includes eight (8) of sixteen (16) vendors receiving a competitive award for
renewal funding, and represents $1,089,408 of a total of $1,848,809 being funded through the
Continuum of Care program. The Governor and Executive Council have already approved eight (8) of
the sixteen (16) contracts. Pursuant to these agreements, vendors will utilize Continuum of Care funds
to provide and pay for, supportive services, rental/leasing assistance, and administrative costs
associated with providing services to homeless individuals and/or families. Through the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development funded Continuum of Care program, the vendors will
provide a comprehensive support services network to provide the unmet housing needs of individuals
and/or families and will promote the ability of participants to live more independently.

The Department is presenting these contracts to the Governor and Executive Council for
approval in groups in an effort to consolidate administrative work and minimize the duplication of efforts
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when preparing items for the Department Administrative Services to review and for the Governor and
Executive Council to approve.

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development developed the Continuum of Care
concept to support communities in their efforts to address the problems of housing and homelessness
in a coordinated, comprehensive, and strategic fashion. The Continuum of Care serves three main
purposes:

1) A strategic planning process for addressing homelessness in the community.

2) A process to engage broad-based, community-wide involvement in addressing
homelessness on a year-round basis.

3) An opportunity for communities to submit an application to the U.S. Department of Housing
and Urban Development for resources targeting housing and support services for homeless
individuals and families.

The Department assures contract compliance and provider performance through the
following:

1) Annual compliance reviews are performed that include the collection of data relating to
compliance with administrative rules and contractual agreements.

2) Statistical reports are submitted on a semi-annual basis from all funded providers, including
various demographic information and income and expense reports including match dollars;

3) Al providers funded for transitional housing, permanent housing, or outreach services will
be required to maintain timely and accurate data entry on the New Hampshire Homeless
Management Information System, unless they are required by law to use an alternate data
collection. The NH Homeless Management Information System will be the primary reporting
tool for outcomes and activities of shelter and housing programs funded through these
contracts.

Should Governor and Executive Council determine not to approve this request, outreach,
transitional and permanent housing resources for people who are homeless may not be available in
their communities, and there will be an increase in demand for services placed upon the region’s local
welfare authorities. Further, an ongoing project may not be able to continue, causing many individuals
and/or families to become homeless. People who are without housing and resources will resort to
seeking shelter in places that are not fit for habitation, or will attempt to travel to shelters in other
communities. This will increase the likelihood that people who are homeless will be in danger of injury
or death, and will be cut off from basic supports for housing, health, education and treatment.
Numerous jobs would also be lost since the shelter and/or resource agency would have to close its
doors or drastically reduce staff.
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In the event that the federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Area served: Statewide
Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds.

Respectfully submitted,

\ﬁ///{ﬂ/‘/‘jéé”/ WJ)

MaryQ\/nn Cooney
Associate Commissioner

Approved by: bj \&& .
Nicholas A. Toumpa
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence



Continuum of Care

Community Action Program Belknap- Merrimack, Inc. (Vendor # 177203-B001)
Areas Served: Franklin

Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $39,199
: -Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2016 $27,995
Sub-total $67,194

Center for Life Management — Beaver Lake Lodge & PHI (Vendor # 174116-P001)

Area Served: Derry

Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2014 $0
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $504,134
Sub-total $504,134
Community Bridges (Vendor # 155658-B001)
Area Served: Franklin
Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
) Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2014 $0
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $113,896
Sub-total $113,896
Community Partners of Strafford County (Vendor # 177200-B004)
Area Served: Dover
Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2014 $0
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $40,527
Sub-total $40,527
Families in Transition - Concord PHP (Vendor # 157730-B001)
Area Served: Greater Concord Area
Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2014 $0
Contracts for Prog ' : -
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $68,585
Sub-total $68,585

Continuum of Care
financial Detail
Page 1of 4




Continuum of Care

Families in Transition-Concord Community Leasing Il (Vendor # 157730-B001)

Area Served: Concord

Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year C‘:\ontract
mount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2014 $31,937
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $95,809
Sub-total $127,746
Family in Transition-Dover PHP (Vendor 157730-B001)
Area Served: Dover
Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-5007 31 Svc 42306010 2015 $63,848
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2016 $31,924
Sub-total $95,772
Families in Transition PH VI (Vendor # 157730-B001)
Area Served: Manchester
. . State Fiscal Contract
Account Class Title Activity Code Year Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $54,780
Contracts for Prog
102-5007 31 Svc 42306010 2016 $16,594
Sub-total $71,374

Families in Transition Concord Community PH (Vendor # 157730-B001)
Area Served: Greater Concord Area & Merrimack County

Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Sve 42306010 2015 $63,784
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Sve 42306010 2016 $31,890
Sub-total $95,674

Continuum of Care
Financial Detail
Page 2 of 4




Continuum of Care

Harbor Homes RRH (Vendor # 155358-B001)(HUD 2012 NOFA)
Area Served: Statewide

Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2014 $44,203
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $44,203
Sub-total $88,406
Harbor Homes (Vendor # 155358-B001)
Area Served: Greater Nashua Area
Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2014 $0
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $200,114
Sub-total $200,114
Lakes Region Mental Health d/b/a Genesis Behavioral Health —
McGrath Street (Vendor # 154480-B001) Area Served: Laconia
Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2014 $0
Contracts for Prog ‘
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $91,051
Sub-total $91,051
Seacoast Mental Health Center (Vendor # 174089-P001)
Area Served: Portsmouth
Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2014 $0
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $13,918
Sub-total $13,918

Southwestern Community Services (Vendor # 177511-P001 )(HUD 2012 NOFA)
Area Served: Cheshire and Sullivan Counties

Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc ‘42306010 2014 $54,865
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015 $54,865
Sub-total $109,730

Continuum of Care
Financial Detail
Page 3 of 4




Continuum of Care

Southwestern Community Services (Next Steps) (Vendor # 177511-P001 )

Area Served: Keene

Account Class Title Activity Code State Fiscal Year | Contract Amount
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2014 $21,174
Contracts for Prog
102-500731 Svc 42306010 2015- $63,5622
Sub-total $84,696

Southwestern Community Services (Cheshire) (Vendor # 177511-P001)
Area Served: Cheshire and Sullivan Counties

Account Class Title Activity Code Stat;aeFalrscal Contract Amount
Contracts for
102-500731 Prog Svc 42306010 2014 30
Contracts for
102-500731 Prog Svc 42306010 2015 $75,992
Sub-total $75,992
Total $1,848,809

Continuum of Care
Financial Detail
Page 4 of 4




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Continuum of Care Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street
Department of Health and Human Services Concord, NH 03301
Office of Human Services
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4  Contractor Address
CLM 10 Tsienneto Rd
Center For Life Management Derry, NH 03038
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
(603) 434-1577 010-042-7927-102-0731 June 30, 2015 $504,134.00
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin (603) 271-9558
]
1.11 Contract(j/gnatnCe‘ 1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
/""kﬁ) [} — p * -
Vic Topo | [fges, oy ;/ (e

)
1.13  Acknowledgement: State of £/ , County of Mg&m

On-.;_//ié fore the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

[Seall ﬂ;é’l e & %//  LYNDAA SILEGY

( 1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace My Gormmission Expires August 19, 2014

1.14 State Agency Signat

1L.15 We and Tijtle OfZ‘ate Agency Signatory

il 24&(0@/71[&, (onnods (~—

1.16 ApprovﬁLhyfth’e N H. Department of Administration, Division of Personnel (i (fapplzcable)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

v [l Tkt o Y1704

1.18 Approval by the Govern and Executive Council

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date™).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shali be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials:
Date:



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement,

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data™ shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: \'Q/
Date: ﬂ as ig_{



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers” Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: i
Date: .;héﬂy_
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SCOPE OF SERVICES

Continuum of Care Program

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

11.

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care Grant.
The State has applied for the Continuum of Care Grant and will continue to perform due
diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no representation that it
will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or
payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the State’s receipt of
federal funds applied for in the Continuum of Care Grant.

2. SERVICES

2.1.

22.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, the Contractor
shall provide a permanent housing program that shall serve thirty five (35) homeless
individuals with disabilities.

The goal of this program is to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals to
permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

To be eligible for contract services, individuals must be homeless as defined in HUD
regulations. The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate documentation.

The Contractor shall provide these services according to HUD regulations as outlined in
Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578 Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
Transition to Housing: Continuum of Care Program interim rule, and other written HUD
policies and directives.

Each program participant shall have an employment assessment and employment
goals included in the individual service plan, as appropriate.

3. PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

3.1.

3.2.

The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report: Within thirty (30) days after the Completion Date,
an Annual Performance Report (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that
summarizes the results of the Project Activities, showing in particular how the
Project Activities have been performed. The Annual Performance Report shall
be in the form required or specified by the State.

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State.

All programs under this contract are required to be licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS).
Programs under this contract must be famitiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time
required for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through
the following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

\/v./
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3.3. Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the BHHS.

4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities
and documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably
interfere with contractor performance.

4.3. The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.

4.4. Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of
the contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is
completed and all questions arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

4.5. Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the
BHHS.

5. FINANCIAL

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program agreement value specified in Exhibit B of this agreement
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

5.1.1. Operating Expenses

5.1.1.1. Eligible operating expenses include maintenance and repair of housing,
property taxes and insurance (including property and car), scheduled
payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the
system and expected replacement cost), building security for a structure
where more than fifty percent of the units or area is paid for with grant
funds, utilities (including electricity, gas and water), furniture and
equipment.

5.1.1.2. Ineligible costs include rental assistance and operating costs in the same
project, operating costs of emergency shelter- and supportive service-
only facilities, maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of
maintaining and repairing the housing are included in the lease.

5.1.2. Supportive Services

5.1.2.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations
in 24 CFR 578.53. Eligible services are available to those individuals
actively participating in the permanent housing program.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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51.2.2.

5.1.23.

Eligible costs include mental health services, case management
services, salaries of Contractor staff providing supportive services,
reasonable one-time moving costs (truck rental and hiring a moving
company), child-care costs for establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers for children from families experiencing
homelessness (including providing meals and snacks and
comprehensive and coordinated developmental activities), education
services, employment assistance and job training skills, housing search
and counseling services, legal services (fees charged by licensed
attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys,
for advice and representation in matters that interfere with the homeless
individual or family's ability to obtain and retain housing), outpatient
health services, transportation services, and utility deposits.

ineligible costs include staff training, fundraising, conference attendance,
and court fines incurred by participants.

5.1.3. Rental Assistance

CA/DHHS/100213

5.1.3.1.

5.1.3.2.

5.1.3.3.

5.1.3.4.

5.1.3.5.

5.1.3.6.

Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals
and families. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program
participant who is already receiving rental assistance, or living in a
housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating assistance through
other federal, State, or local sources.

The rental assistance may be short term, up to 3 months of rent; medium
term, for 3-24 months; or long-term, for longer than 24 months of rent
and must be administered in accordance with the policies and
procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a)(9) and 24 CFR 578.51.

Long-term rental assistance must be administered by someone other
than the Contractor. The Contractor must have a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU), with a State, unit of general local government, or
a public housing agency.

Short or medium term rental assistance provided under the Rapid
ReHousing program component is not subject to requirements in 578.51
(b), and is not required to be administered by a state, unit of local
government, or public housing agency.

Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to
exceed 2 months of rent. An advance payment of the last month’s rent
may be provided to the landlord, in addition to the security deposit and
payment of first month’s rent.

Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable.
The contractor must determine whether the rent charged for the unit
receiving rental assistance is reasonable in relation to rents being
charged for comparable unassisted units, taking into account the
location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management and
maintenance of each unit.

Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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5.1.4.

CA/DHHS/100213

51.3.7.

5.1.3.8.

5.1.3.9.

5.1.3.10.

5.1.3.11.

5.1.3.12.

51.3.13.

The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month’s rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant.

Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental
assistance: Tenant-based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 578.51.

Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program
participants choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside.
When necessary to facilitate the coordination of supportive services,
recipients and sub recipients may require program participants to live in
a specific area for their entire period of participation, or in a specific
structure for the first year and in a specific area for the remainder of their
period of participation. Short and medium term rental assistance
provided under the Rapid ReHousing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between
the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private,
nonprofit organization, or a community mental health agency established
as a public nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in
housing owned or leased by the sponsor.

Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the
owner of an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the
subsidized units to program participants. Program participants will not
retain rental assistance if they move.

For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance,
program participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at
least one year, which is terminable for cause. The leases must be
automatically renewable upon expiration for terms that are a minimum of
one month long, except on prior notice by either party.

Administrative Costs

51.4.1.

Administrative costs include: Preparing program budgets, schedules and
amendments, developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements, developing interagency agreements and agreements with
sub recipients and contractors to carry out program activities, preparing
reports and other documents related to the program for submission to
HUD, evaluating program results against stated objectives, travel costs
incurred for official business in carrying out the program, administrative
services performed under third party contracts or agreements (including
such services as general legal services, accounting services, and audit
services), and other costs for goods and services required for

o
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5.2.

5.3.

54.

5.5.

administration of the program (including such goods and services as
rental or purchase of equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and
rental and maintenance, but not purchase, of office space).

The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73 (a) (b) (c).

5.2.1. The contractor must match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no less
than twenty-five percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources.

5.2.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 4.1. The Contractor must have written approval
from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water);
however, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD
regulations (24 CFR 583.315). Other services such as cable, air conditioning,
telephone, Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant’s
option.

The contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract or counted as
match complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials .
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Continuum of Care Program

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Continuum of Care Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.235

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Continuum of Care Program

Total Amount Continuum of Care Program;

July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2015: not to exceed $504,134.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program for Beaver Lake Lodge;
Operating expenses: $176,893.00

Supportive services: $62,042.00

Administrative costs: $6.286.00

Total program amount:  $245,221.00

Funds allocation under this agreement Continuum of Care Program for PH |;
Supportive services: $45,000.00

Legal Rental Assistance: $207,276.00

Administrative costs: $6.637.00

Total program amount:  $258,913.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental assistance and
administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the
time period specified above.

2. REPORTS

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1 Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion

of said report to the State.
Yl
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2.2

Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE

3.1

3.2.

3.3.

Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor for operations, supportive services,
leasing, rental assistance and administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing programs under the
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act),
Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550) in an amount not to exceed as
specified above. Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a
monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of
each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as designated by the
State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The Contractor shall
provide additional financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or
Audited Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the
Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such review the State shall disallow
any items of expenses that are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be
in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows
costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any
amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture
pursuant to 24 CFR Subsection 576.55. The funds authorized to be expended under
this Agreement shall be used only for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental
assistance and administration or reimbursement for expenditures for operations,
supportive services, leasing, and rental assistance and administration, provided by the
Contractor for the project period and operating years of the Continuum of Care Program
as approved by HUD and in accordance with the Continuum of Care Program
Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part 578.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

4.1.

CAJDHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor initials

The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed amount
for the Continuum of Care Program as specified in this Exhibit, as defined by HUD
under the provisions of P.L. 102-550 and applicable regulations.
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4.2. The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the
contract price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and
written approval from the State.

4.3. Conformance to OMB Circular A-110: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance
with procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular A-110.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and
any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in
direct operations of the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shail maintain a financial management system that complies with
Attachment G of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or
such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment shall be made
according to EXHIBIT B, Section 3.2 of this Agreement.

Contractor Initiais P
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include al!
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established,
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs; Vq/
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and al!
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolis, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of appfication and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shali not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following

times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shali
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disaliow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor’'s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’s performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor’'s performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve alt subcontracts.

if the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shail mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuais hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean ail such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials :
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is
replaced as follows:

4.

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. {n
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

CU/DHHS/110713

The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.
The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

o

Page 1 of 1 Date M

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the foliowing Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part |l of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, uniess the Federal agency

Exhibit D — Certification regarding Drug Free Contractor Initials \‘ﬂ/
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: CQ'\‘\f"‘ ‘P\l( Ll\€£ MQV\C&%QW-@K{'
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XiX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: ( epder ‘Fo( L.\Fe (V‘avmgu«e r\"‘
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shail submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or defauit.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erronecus by reason of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

"o

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily exciuded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials
And Other Responsibility Matters .
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more pubtic
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with ali applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: Q,QM‘-\U‘ FO( LWLQ \\V\o«uagemét\;t
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may resuit in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: (¢ g, 'fﬂf lj(;t Mavia glm 041'
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Heaith Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those
parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall
mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

Definitions

1. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

2. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

3. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

4. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

5. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

6. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

7. "HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

8. "HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

9. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and
shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

10. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health
and Human Services.

11. “Protected Heaith Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

12. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

13. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

14. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

15. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured by
a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing
organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

16. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under
45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Exhibit | - Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials
Business Associate Agreement
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Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

1.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

2.1. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

2.2. Asrequired by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

2.3. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from
the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required
by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such
third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitie D, Part 1, Sec.
13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of
such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the
basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such
disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has
exhausted all remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional
restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by
any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

1.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any
use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s
compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use
and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party
beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of
this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements,
policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes
of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the
Agreement.

Exhibit | -~ Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials
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6. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by
Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

7. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate
shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

8. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

9. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

10. In the event any individua! requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual’s request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

11. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the
protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains
such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or
all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

1. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

2. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508.

3. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the
Agreement upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials V(
Business Associate Agreement
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 3 of 4 Date {



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

Miscellaneous

1.

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to a Section in
the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect
to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.
Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be
given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit |
are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |.

Contractor Name: Cewhe e -For L:fa M&vlq,semepf'

»

Daté

5,914 [~ Vapt |, [/l

N_ame: U';C TJ?’O

Title:

Stateﬁ?ency Name

27 /0s 7%“’9/}«/

Date ~ Name: /;1&7
Title: /

MO‘( *(JL\,LCW\,IC\Q ( T

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials\(
Business Associate Agreement i i

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 4 of 4 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity

Amount of award

Funding agency

NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants

Program source

Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

Location of the entity

Principle place of performance

Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)
. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:

10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOOMNOOBWON

o

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: cewte e Fﬁ' L:f—e H&MASEHEM-TL

6,/19//4 /“" 76 %fg/a/p”][/d(;'()

Date Name: \Vie 19 /(0 /
Title:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials VQ/

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance - /
CU/DHHS/110713 Page 1 0f 2 Date / Lf



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 0!\5‘{735’7//

2. Inyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

_ Y _no __YES

if the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials

Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance I
CU/DHHS/110743 Page 2 of 2 Date 53 Zf qz Y



State of Neto Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT is a New Hampshire trade name
' registered on June 30, 2003 and that The Mental Health Center for Southern New
Hampshire presently own(s) this trade name. I further certify that it is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned, having paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2*® day of April, A.D. 2014

ey ko

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, Wayne D. White , do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. I am a duly elected Officer of CLM Center for Life Management
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on 3, o/
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the President/CEO
{Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency 1o enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the [f day of L’/_@M\ , 20/ %
(Date Contract Signed) =

4. Vic Topo is the duly elected President/CEO
{Name of Contract Signatory) {Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

(S¥nature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of /;[ /Z TL7748

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this / 2 day of M 204% ,

By Wayne D. White .
{Nama of Elected Officer of the Agency) /

oy 2 /2,

( )’Notary Public/Jdstice of fﬁg@e@é)

(NOTARY BEAL)

LYNDA A. SILEGY

Commission Expires: Notary Public - New Hampshire
— My Commission Expires August 19, 2014

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

N,
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oarsozors

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).
PRODUCER ﬁgmg_\cr Sharon Lambert
Fred C. Church, Inc. : ;
41 Wellman Street PHONE 978 3227264 FAX (978) 454-1865
Lowell, MA 01851 EMAIL (AIG, No):
{800) 225-1865 ADDRESS: stamber@fredechurch.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC#
INSURER A ;  ACE.USA
INSURED INSURER g ;  Ac® American Company 22667
The Mental Heafth Center For Southem N. H, DBA CLM Center For Life Management NSURER G+ New Hampshis Empioy = ” 1308?
10 Tsienneto Road
Derry, NH 03033 INSURERD :
INSURERE :
INSURERF ;
COVERAGES ’ CERTIFICATE NUMBER: 27 REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE R 'wvD POLICY NUMBER MDOIYYYY (mm LMITs
GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
X | "DAMAGE TO RENTED
X | COMMERCIL GENERAL LIABILITY PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | 8 25000
| cLams MaDE Elowun MED EXP (Any one persor) | § 10000
8 SVRDA7797649 10172013 10072014 [ oepsonAL BADVINURY | § 1000000
|| . GENERAL AGGREGATE § 3.000,000
_G_IEN'LAGGREGATE UMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | § 3,000,000
| | PRO- [X
POLICY JECT Loc $
"COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT.
| AUTOMOBILE LABILITY . — - ooooocf f I I — | P AENEDSINGLE M 7,000,000
X | ANY AUTO i BODLLY INJURY (Perpersan) | $
—1 SCH s
A ] ALL OWNED s E)ULZI: CALH08613059 10/1/2013 1012014 | BODILY INJURY (Per accident)| $
NON-OWN | PROPER)Y DAMAGE
|| HREDAUTOS AUTOS | (Per acddent) $
$
X |umsrertatas | X | occur EACH OCCURRENCE § 3000000
8 | |excessuas CLAIMS-MADE XOOG25499220005 10172013 10172014 [ yemoecate ¢ 3,000,000
pep | * | rerenmonss 109% : s
WORKERS COMPENSATION ) M l lom.
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN S e Ty
R s aath S ol I T 40000840 10412013 | 10014 | ELEACHACCDENT S
(Mandatory ln NF) EL DISEASE - EAEMPLOYEH § 00000
DS S TION OF OPERATIONS below E.L DISEASE - POLICY LiniT | § 500.000
) $4,000,000 Per Occurrence
$6,000,000 General Aggregate
B | Professional Liabdity CRL(G25499268005 10/12013 101172014 Clakms Made Retro Date: 7/1/1986
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space Is required)
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION
State of NH Dept HealttvHuman Services
Bureau Homeless/tiousing Attn: Anne Pocock SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
P'WNH' Smo""e‘1 THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
' ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
I
Client# 10 Mty 27308 Cert Holder #3204 © 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2010/05) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



CL@ Center for Life

Management

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of CLM Center for Life
Management is to promote and advance
the mental health and emotional well-
being of the individuals, families, and
organizations within our communities.

We accomplish this through professionai,
individualized, comprehensive services
and by parinering with other
organizations that share
our philosophy.



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE
MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)



CLM) Center for Life

Management.

December 23, 2013

To:  U.S. Department Of Housing and Urban Development
From: Vic Topo, CEO
Re:  Commitment Letter & Leveraging Agreement

This is to document Center For Life Managements’ (CLM) firm commitment to the
allocation of cash resources to support the HUD Beaver Lake Lodge project for the fiscal
year beginning July 1, 2014. Combined cash resources in the amount of $587,200.00 are
allocated to support the program participants through the ongoing provision of mental
health care and treatment services.

Also, this will further establish that funds will be leveraged to provide the mental health
services noted above. These services are intended to meet the needs of the individuals
receiving rental subsidies who have histories of mental illness and/or concurrent
substance abuse. Specifically, these will include Case Management Services and
Functional Support Services to promote successful community integration and recovery.

Respgcetfully Submitted,

;,W

Vic Topo, CEO
ce file
M. Bergeron
B. Quimby
Main Office Salem Branch |
10 Tsienneto Road, Derry, NH 03038 44 Stiles Road, Salem, NH 03079 A Unied Way Member agoncy

Tel. 603.434.1577 Tel. 603.893.4194 7
Fax. 603.434.3101 I Fax. 603.893.2199 www.CenterForLifeManagement.org -



CLM)

Center for Life
Management.

December 23, 2013

To:  U.S. Department Of Housing and Urban Development
From: Vic Topo, CEO
Re:  Commitment Letter & Leveraging Agreement

This is to document Center For Life Managements’ (CLM) firm commitment to the
allocation of cash resources to support the HUD Permanent Housing 1 project for the
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014. Combined cash resources in the amount of
$499,979.00 are allocated to support the program participants through the ongoing
provision of mental health care and treatment services.

Also, this will further establish that funds will be leveraged to provide the mental health
services noted above. These services are intended to meet the needs of the individuals
receiving rental subsidies who have histories of mental illness and/or concurrent
substance abuse. Specifically, these will include Case Management Services and
Functional Support Services to promote successful community integration and recovery.

Respegtfully Submitted,

i

Vic Topo, C
cc file
M. Bergeron
B. Quimby
Main Office Salem Branch
10 Tsi.enncto Road, Derry, NH 03038 44 Stiles Road, Salem, NH 03079
Tel. 603.893.4194
et Fax. 603.893.2199 www.CenterForLifeManagement.org

Fax. 603.434.3101
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MEeLaNSON HEATH & Company, PC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
MANAGEMENT ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

To the Board of Directors
The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire
d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of The
Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management
and Affiliates as of June 30, 2013, and the related consolidated Statement of Activities,
Statement of Functional Expenses, and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

102 Perimeter Road ~ » 149 Hanover Street » 10 New Englund Business Center Drive, Suite 107+ 51 Dawis Street, Suite | . P.O. Box 646
Nashua, NH 03063 Manchester, NH 03101 Andover, MA 01810 Greenfield, MA 01301 Ellsworth, ME 04605

800-282-2440 « www.melansonheath.com



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of The Mental Health Center For Southern New
Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates as of June 30, 2013, and
the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated
October 1, 2013, on our consideration of The Mental Health Center For Southern New
Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates’ internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering The Mental Health Center
For Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates’
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as
a whole. The supplementary information on pages 15 - 21 are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to
the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a
whole.

Melarsan  fHleath *CM""()\ £ <

Nashua, New Hampshire
October 1, 2013



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2012)

ASSETS
013 2012
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 429,199 $ 511,446
Restricted cash 124,439 88,870
Accounts receivable, net 907,893 842,498
Other receivables 141,960 173,951
Prepaid expenses 62,886 54,331
Total Current Assets 1,666,377 1,671,096
Property and equipment, net 4,416,653 4,585,907
Finance costs, net 362,964 380,611
Total Assets $ 6,445,994 $ 6,637,614
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
2013 012
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 76,018 $ 98,307
Accrued payroll and related taxes payable 153,878 143,747
Accrued vacation 274,697 269,011
Accrued interest 49,000 48,440
Accrued expenses 39,532 28,084
Deferred revenue - 12,000
Line of credit - 200,000
Current portion of long-term debt 108,809 107,449
Total Current Liabilities 701,934 907,038
Non-Current Liabilities:
Long-term debt, net of current portion 3,368,380 3,442,070
Total Liabilities 4,070,314 4,349,108
Net Assets - unrestricted 2,375,680 2,288,506
Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 6,445,994 $ 6,637,614

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE

D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2012)

2013 2012
Public Support and Revenues:
Public Support:
Federal $ 970,014 $ 872,657
State of New Hampshire - BBH 222,955 84,607
State and local funding 47,400 47,400
Other public support 38,322 43,499
Total Public Support 1,278,691 1,048,163
Revenues:
Program service fees, net 9,964,952 9,673,849
Other service income 365,753 335,457
Rental income 83,794 80,271
Other 19,140 60,794
Total Revenues 10,433,639 10,150,371
Total Public Support and Revenues 11,712,330 11,198,534
Expenses:
BBH funded program services:
Children 3,182,135 2,964,715
Elders 287,693 255,875
Vocational 285,723 298,887
Beaver Lake Lodge 828,851 792,337
Multi-Service 1,458,738 1,390,733
Acute Care 662,924 622,662
Independent Living 1,746,387 1,622,516
Assertive Community Treatment 409,008 433,134
Non-Specialized Outpatient 1,338,833 1,389,331
Non-BBH funded program services 535,639 275,263
Total Program Expenses 10,735,931 10,045,453
Administrative Expenses 889,225 898,004
Total Expenses 11,625,156 10,943,457
Change in net assets 87,174 255,077
Net assets at beginning of year, as restated 2,288,506 2,033,429
Net assets at end of year § 2375680 § 2,288,506

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2013
(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30, 2012)

2013 2012
Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Change in net assets $ 37.174 § 255,077
Adjustments to reconcile net income
to net cash provided by operations:
Depreciation and amortization 225,690 251,838
Gain on sale/disposal of assets - (35,650)
(Increase) decrease in:
Restricted cash (35,569) (8,600)
Accounts receivable (65,395) (20,386)
Other receivables 31,991 (83,672)
Prepaid expenses (8,555) (1,387)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 5,536 (56,042)
Deferred revenue (12,000) 12,000
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 228,872 313,178
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Proceeds from sale of property - 200,000
Purchases of property and equipment (38,789) (47,684)
Closing costs - (24,700)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Activities (38.789) 127,616
Cash Flows from Financing Activities:
Net borrowings (payments) on line of credit (200,000) 200,000
Principal payments on long-term debt (72,330) (341,668)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (272,330) (141,668)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (82,247) 299,126
Cash, Beginning of Year 511.446 212,320
Cash, End of Year $ 429,199 $ 511,446
Supplemental disclosures
Interest paid $ 125,299 $ 153,086
——————— ]
Non-cash financing $ - 100,000

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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1.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR
SOUTHERN NEW HAMPSHIRE
D/B/A CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT AND AFFILIATES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
June 30, 2013 and 2012

Organization

The Mental Health Center For Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management (the “Agency”) is a not-for-profit corporation, organized under New
Hampshire law to provide services in the areas of mental health, and related non-mental
health programs.

West Rock Endowment Association, Inc. (the “Association™), is a title-holding company
as defined by the Internal Revenue Service whose sole purpose is to lease its real estate
holdings to qualifying exempt organizations. It is affiliated with The Mental Health
Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management through
common board members.

During 2007, the Center for Life Management Foundation (the “Foundation”) was estab-
lished to act for the benefit of, to carry out the functions of, and to assist the Agency. It is
affiliated with The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center
for Life Management through common board members and management. In addition, the
Agency is the sole member.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of The Mental Health Center
of Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life Management and Affiliates,
West Rock Endowment Association, Inc., and the Center for Life Management
Foundation. All intercompany transactions and accounts have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Accounting for Contributions and Financial Statement Presentation
The consolidated financial statements follow Accounting for Contributions Received and

Contributions Made and Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Organizations as required
by the Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB
ASC). Under these guidelines, there is a requirement to distinguish between contributions
that increase permanently restricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and
unrestricted net assets. It also requires recognition of contributions, including contributed
services, meeting certain criteria at fair values. These reporting standards establish
standards for financial statements of not-for-profit organizations and require a Statement of
Financial Position, a Statement of Activities, a Statement of Functional Expenses, and a
Statement of Cash Flows.



Basis of Accounting

Revenues and expenses are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Under this basis,
revenues, other than contributions, and expenses are reported when incurred, without
regard to the date of receipt or payment of cash. Contributions are reported in accordance
with FASB ASC Accounting for Contributions Received and Contributions Made.

Restricted and Unrestricted Revenue

Contributions that are restricted by the donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net
assets if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All
other donor-restricted contributions are reported as increases in temporarily or perma-
nently restricted net assets, depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction
expires, temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and
reported in the Statement of Activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, all highly liquid investments with an

initial maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost or, if donated, at estimated fair market value
at the date of donation. Major additions and improvements are capitalized, while ordinary
maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is provided using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets, ranging from 3
to 40 years. Assets not in service are not depreciated.

Financing Costs
Financing costs are recorded on the balance sheet net of accumulated amortization. These
costs are being amortized over the term of the financing.

Vacation Pay and Fringe Benefits

Vacation pay is accrued and charged to programs when earned by the employee. Fringe
benefits are allocated to the appropriate program expense based on the percentage of
actual time spent on programs.

Third-party Contractual Arrangements

A significant portion of patient revenue is derived from services to patients insured by
third-party payers. Reimbursements from Medicare, Medicaid, and Blue Cross at defined
rates for services rendered to patients covered by these programs are received. The
difference between the established billing rates and the actual rate of reimbursement is
recorded as an allowance when received. A provision for estimated contractual
allowances is provided on outstanding patient receivables at the balance sheet date.




Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Accordingly, actual amounts could differ from those esti-
mates.

Tax Status

The Mental Health Center of Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(a) of the Internal
Revenue Code as an organization described in Section 501(c)(3). The Agency has also
been classified as an entity that is not a private foundation within the meaning of Section
509(a) and qualifies for deductible contributions.

West Rock Endowment Association, Inc. is a 501(c)(2) title holding company whose sole
purpose is to lease its real estate holdings to qualifying organizations.

The Center for Life Management Foundation is exempt from federal income tax under
section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code as an organization described in section
501(c)(3). It is an organization that is organized and operated exclusively for the benefit
of the Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management.

These financial statements follow FASB ASC, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes and prescribes a
recognition threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes did not have a material impact on these financial statements.

Federal Form 990 (Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax) for fiscal years
2010, 2011, and 2012 is subject to examination by the IRS, generally for three years after
filing.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Statement of Activities and in the Statement of Functional
Expenses. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited.

Reclassifications
Certain accounts in the prior-year financial statements have been reclassified for compar-
ative purposes to conform to the presentation in the current-year financial statements.

Comparative Financial Information

The financial statements include certain prior year summarized comparative information
in total but not by net asset class. Such information does not include sufficient detail to

9



constitute a presentation in conformity with GAAP. Accordingly, such information
should be read in conjunction with the organization’s financial statements for the year
ended June 30, 2012, from which the summarized information was derived.

Subsequent Events
In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent Events, events and

transactions from July 1, 2013 through October 1, 2013, the date the financial statements
were available to be issued, have been evaluated by management for disclosure.
Management has determined that there were no material events that would require
disclosure in these financial statements through this date.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Cash balances are maintained at several financial institutions. Accounts at each institution
are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At June 30,
2013 all deposits were insured.

. Restricted Cash

Restricted cash is to be used mainly for debt service, as designated by the Series 2006

bonds.

. Accounts Receivable, Net

Receivables consisted of the following at June 30:

Accounts Receivable: 2013 2012
Receivable Receivable
Receivable Allowance Net Receivable Allowance Net
Clients $ 540,356 $ (344,265 $ 196,091 $ 605129 $ (362,453) § 242,676
Insurance companies 151,163 (6,873) 144,290 118,902 2,211) 116,691
Medicaid 455,647 9,697) 445,950 430,360 (3,958) 426,402
Medicare 132,207 ~ (10,645) 121,562 59,580 (2,851) 56,729
$ 1,279,373 $ (371,480) $ 907,893 $ 1,213,971 $ (371,473) §_ 842458
Other Receivables: 2013 2012
Towns $ 21,500 $ 26,000
NH Division of Mental Health 72,025 88.505
Miscellaneous 48.435 59,446
Other receivables $ 141,960 $ 173,951

Property. Equipment and Depreciation

The following is a summary of property and equipment as of June 30:
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Land

Buildings and improvements
Automobiles

Equipment

Construction in progress

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Property and equipment, net

. Line of Credit

2013 2012

$ 687307 $ 687,307

4,475,044 4,470,824

89,335 130,920

1,613,141 1,587,905

41,394 32,061

6,906,221 6,909,017
(2,489,568) (2,323,110)

$~ 4416655 $

4,585,507

As of June 30, 2013, a demand line of credit with People’s United Bank with a borrowing
capacity of $750,000 is available through December 31, 2013, the annual review date.
Interest accrued on the outstanding principal balance is payable monthly at prime plus
0.25%; provided, however, at no time shall the interest rate be less than 5.00%. The
outstanding balance on this line at June 30, 2013 was $0. The line of credit is secured by
all business assets and real estate.

. Long Term Debt

Long-term debt at June 30, 2013 consisted of the following:

Mortgage payable to People's United Bank, interest at 5.823%, monthly
payments of $2,489, with balloon payment extended through
September 17, 2011, collateralized by real estate.

Series 2006 New Hampshire Health and Education Facilities
payable through July 2036, original principal of $3,700,000, remarketed

and sold to Centrix Bank in December 2011 at 2.80% per annum.

Less Current Portion

Long-term debt, net of current portion

2013 2012
$ 57,189 $ 89519
3,420,000 3,460,000
3,477,189 3,549,519
(108,809) (107,449)
$ 3368380 $ 3,442,070

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows for the years ending June 30:

Thereafter

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018
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10.

In accordance with the Series 2006 bond issuance, there is a ten-year letter of credit
commitment (currently with People’s United Bank) to support the tax-exempt bonds
issue. An 0.85% fee on the outstanding letter of credit balance is required. During the
year ending June 30, 2013, fees were incurred on the outstanding letter of credit, which
are included in interest expense.

The bonds are secured by land, building, equipment, and certain revenues. Certain
covenants must also be met in order to maintain compliance with the loan agreements,
including:

A. Maintenance of a 1.10 Debt Service Coverage ratio and a 0.04 Liquidity ratio.

B. Maintenance of a Debt Service Reserve Fund.

Restricted Net Assets and Net Assets Released from Restriction

Since there are no restricted net assets, no net assets were released from restriction.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC, Fair Value Measurements, provides guidance for using fair value to measure
assets and liabilities. Fair Value Measurements applies whenever other standards require
or permit assets or liabilities to be measured at their fair market value. The standard does
not expand the use of fair value in any new circumstances. Under Fair Value Measure-
ments, fair value refers to the price that would be received from the sale of an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants as of the
measurement date. Fair Value Measurements clarifies the principle that fair value should
be based on the assumptions market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability and establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the information used to
develop those assumptions.

Under Fair Value Measurements, fair value estimates are categorized based on a
hierarchical framework associated with three levels of price transparency utilized in
measuring financial instruments at fair value. Classification is based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to the fair value of the instrument. The three levels are as
follows:

e Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement
date. The types of financial instruments included in Level 1 are highly liquid
instruments with quoted prices;

e Level 2 - Inputs from active markets, other than quoted prices for identical
instruments, are used to model fair value. Significant inputs are directly
observable from active markets for substantially the full term of the asset or
liability being valued; and

12



11.

12.

e Level 3 - Pricing inputs significant to the valuation are unobservable. Inputs
are developed based on the best information available; however, significant
judgment is required by management in developing the inputs.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate fair value because of the
short maturity of those financial instruments and are considered Level 1 instruments.

Employee Benefit Plan

Discretionary matching contributions to a tax-deferred annuity plan qualified under
Section 403(b) of the Internal Revenue Code are contingent upon financial condition.
This program covers eligible regular full-time and part-time employees who have
successfully completed at least one year of employment and work at least 20 hours per
week. Eligible employees may make contributions to the plan up to the maximum amount
allowed by the Internal Revenue Code if they wish. During the year ended June 30, 2013,
employer contributions totaled $0.

Commitments and Contingencies

The Mental Health Center for Southern New Hampshire, d/b/a CLM Center for Life
Management, has entered into an agreement with Parkland Medical Center (PMC) of
Derry, New Hampshire, effective June 1, 2013, and will expire on December 31, 2014,
whereby CLM provides psychiatric services and consultations to inpatients of PMC for
the hospital medical and nursing staff. The consultations are requested by the hospital and
responded to by CLM medical staff on an on-call basis. In addition to the psychiatric
services, CLM provides emergency mental health assessments, evaluations, and referral
services to the emergency department (ED) of the hospital. CLM emergency service
clinicians are available on a twenty-four hour, seven days a week basis to see patients
entering the ED who are experiencing a mental health crisis or psychiatric emergency.

For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency received approximately 57%
and 60%, respectively, of its total revenue in the form of Medicaid reimbursements.
Being a State of New Hampshire designated Comprehensive Community Mental Health
Center affords the Agency Medicaid provider status. Annual contracting with New
Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services-Bureau of Behavioral Health
provides a base allocation of state general funds that can be taken as a grant or pledged in
full or in part for leveraging matching federal Medicaid funds.

13



Lease Commitments
There were several long-term lease agreements for clinic space and equipment that
expired July, 2013. Rent expense was $85,035 for the year ended June 30, 2013.

13. Beginning Net Assets Restatement

Beginning net assets were increased by $122,733 in order to properly reflect the prior
year accounts payable balance.
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] S Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

007323

P.0. Box 2508 In reply refer to: 02648567572

Cincinnati OH 45201 Oct. 13, 2010 LTR 4168C EUO
02-0301530 000000 0O
00013542
BODC: TE

MENTAL HEALTH CENTER FOR SOUTHERN
NEW HAMPSHIRE INC

CLM CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT

10 TSIENNETO RD

DERRY NH 03038-1505

Emplover Identification Number: 02-0301530
Person to Contact: Ms. Mueller
Yoll Free Telephone Number: 1-877-829-5500

Dear Taxpaver:

This is in response to vour Oct. 01, 2010, request for information
regarding your tax-exempt status.

Qur records indicate that vou were recognized as exempt under
scction BN1(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code in a determination
letter issued in November iS57i.

Qur records also indicate that you are not a private foundation within
the meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because you are described in
section(s) 509Ca) (1) and 170(b) (1) (A)(vi).

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devisesg, transfers, or gifts to you or
far your use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if thevy mcet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and
2522 of the Couca. .

Please refer to our website www.irs.gov/eo for infermation regarding
filing requirements. Specifically, section 6033(j) of the Code
provides that failure to file an annual information return for three
consecutive years results in revocation of tax-exempt status as of
the filing due date of the third return for organizations required to
file.

If you have any auestions, please call us at the telephone number
shown in the heading of this Jetter.

Sincerely yours,

Michele M. Sullivan, Oper. Mgr.
Accounts Management Operations 1



Policy No. CS100.00

CLM Center for Life

Manaeement

-7 MAnagement.

TITLE: Client Rights
EFFECTIVE DATE: June 1999
April 2003
January 2006
Revised Feb 2008
APPROVED BY: Senior Management Team Date 6-28-2010
Chief Executive Officer Date 6-28-2010
APPLIES TO: All programs and departments

CONTACT PERSON: V.P. of Quality & Compliance

POLICY:

1.

All services rendered by Center for Life Management (CLM) will be rendered on a non-
discriminatory basis as required by federal and state laws.

2. All services will be rendered in a manner that is respectful of each person’s age, gender, social
supports, cultural orientation, psychological characteristics, sexual orientation, physical situation,
and spiritual beliefs.

3. CLM shall ensure that all clients will be involved in all aspects of their treatment.

4. No applicant for service or client receiving service will be denied any right as set forth and
protected by the New Hampshire Bureau of Behavioral Health in He-M 309. All clients of CLM
shall be covered by this policy.

5. CLM will have an established mechanism for the notification of client rights and HIPAA privacy
practices to all applicants for service.

6. CLM will have an established mechanism for the investigation and resolution of complaints
regarding client rights. Investigations are part of CLM’'s Quality Improvement Program and, as
such, are afforded certain protections from discovery.

7. CLM will have an established mechanism for the documentation of complaints regarding client
rights.

8. All employees of CLM will be trained annuaily on client rights and will review CLM's Code of
Ethics annually.

9. Employees of CLM shall make a complaint to the CLM Client Rights investigator on behalf of an
individual whenever they have reason to believe that a client rights violation has occurred.

10. Complaints determined by the Client Rights Investigator customer service in nature shall be
referred to the appropriate department/program manager for resotution.

PROCEDURE

1. At Intake, and annually thereafter, in clearly understandable language, all applicants for service
will be informed, orally and in writing of their rights as defined by He-M 309 and of the complaint
process.

2. Atintake, all clients will receive a copy of CLM's Notice of Privacy Practices.

3. All applicants for services shall be informed of their right to an evaluation and access to
treatment.

4. Notification of client rights will be documented in the client record.

Page 1 of 5



10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

18.

Policy No. CS100.00
Reviewed: 6-2010

An outline of client rights and HIPAA privacy practices will be conspicuously posted at each
service delivery site.

Each program secretary, who will make them available to any client who asks to see an d/or read
the entirety of their client rights, will keep complete copies of He-M 309 and 202.

CLM will have at all times, a designated Clients Rights Investigator and a Privacy Officer.
Designation or changes in designation of the Client Rights Investigator shall be reported to the
Office of Client Legal Services at the Bureau of Behavioral Health.

The Client Rights Investigator will investigate each complaint in an objective manner. The
resolution process and notification process .outlined in He-M 202 will be followed.

At the option of the individual or guardian and, except in cases of abuse, negiect, or exploitation,
concerns may be addressed informally as defined in He-M 303.

There will be no limit to the number of complaints by any complainant.

Compiaints will be resolved within fifteen working days after receipt of the compiaint, except for
complaints requiring emergency actions, which shall require a decision no later than four working
days after receipt of the complaint.

A client, an applicant for service, an employee of a program or family members of clients may
make complaints. No complaint shall fail to be investigated due to the source of the compliant.
Instances of abuse, neglect or exploitation shail also be reported to the Division of Elderly and
Ault Services (DEAS) or Division for Children, Youth and Families (DCYF), as appropriate.

An employee making a compliant on behalf of a client in good faith shall not be subject to formal
or informal disciplinary actions, harassment or any form of retribution.

Employees are required to fully cooperate in any compliant investigation.

Clients will be informed of the appeals process for all compiaints investigated.

The HIPAA Privacy Officer will handle all federal HIPAA Privacy issues as defined by those
regulations.

All complaints summaries will be reviewed brought CLM's quality Improvement process and
incorporated into the Quality Improvement Plan.

Page 2 of §



Policy No. C$100.00
Reviewed: 6-2010

CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT
CLIENT RIGHTS INVESTIGATION TRACKING FORM

Date of Complaint:

Consumer Name: Age: Sex:

Consumer Phone:

Consumer’s Program:

Consumer’s Treatment Provider(s):

Complainant Name: Phone:

Relationship to Consumer:

Complaint/incident:

Complaint/Incident Reported to:
DCYF DEAS Police Guardian

Other (specify):

Page 3 of 5



Policy No. CS100.00
Reviewed: 6-2010
CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT
CLIENT RIGHTS INVESTIGATION REPORT

Initial Complaint:

Client Rights Alleged tc Have Been Violated:

Interviews:

Discovery:

Finding:

Recommendations:

Actions Taken by Investigator:

Client Rights Investigator Date

Page 4 of 5
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As a client of Center for Life Management, you have rights that will be respected and maintained. Your most
important right is the right to know what your rights are and the right to complain when you believe that your rights
have been violated. No client shall be deprived of any legal right to which all citizens are entitled solely by reason of
their admission to the mental health services system. Some of these rights are outlined below. if you would like a
complete copy of the State regulation that governs these rights, please ask a staff member for a copy of He-M 309:
Rights of Persons Receiving Mental Health Services in the Community.

PERSONAL RIGHTS

to not be discriminated against

to be treated with dignity and respect

to be free from abuse, neglect, and exploitation
to confidentiality: some exceptions are outlined
below

to complain about a violation of rights

SOME EXCEPTIONS TO CONFIDENTIALITY

to secure payment

when reporting abuse, neglect or exploitation of
disabled aduits or of children to the Division of
Behavioral Health

in cases of an Involuntary Emergency Admission
or Guardianship proceedings

when you are a danger to yourself or others

to family members or other person who lives
with you or provides direct care to you (under
certain circumstances)

TREATMENT RIGHTS

to adequate and humane treatment

to make decisions about your services

to treatment based on generally accepted
clinical and professional standards

to a mutually agreed upon treatment plan

to services in the least restrictive setting

to be informed of all significant risks, benefits,
side affects, and aiternative treatment and
services

to be fully informed of your diagnosis and
prognosis

to seek changes in services or treatment

to refuse medication and treatment (except in
Involuntary Emergency Admissions)

to consultation and second opinions

to have someone with you at treatment
meetings where informed decision-making is
required

to freedom from restraint and seclusion except for
personal safety

to receive adequate written notice prior to suspension or
termination of treatment with explanations as to the
reason, and for the right to appeal the action

if you are determined eligible to receive state funded
services, to have your clinician explain:

o the purpose of the Individual Service Planning
(ISP) treatment planning process including
goals, objectives, timelines, reviews, and crisis
plans

o that you have the power to choose either of the
following methods by which my ISP is
developed

= through a formal client centered
conference that is a meeting at a
mutually convenient time and place
with the psychiatrist and other
involved persons approved by me,
such as family members, CLM staff,
representatives of other agencies
providing services to me such as
vocational rehabilitation, friends, an
attorney, legal representative, a peer
advocate and/or others with relevant
knowledge or expertise
« through a less formal method that

shall include one or more one-on-one
or small group meetings with the
psychiatrist and/or others by phone,
in person and/or through other
effective means.

to have ten days to make a decision after receiving the

written explanation regarding he methods to develop

the ISP

to consult with family, friends, therapists, advocates and

others before making the decision regarding the method

to develop my ISP

These treatment rights do not require CLM to provide services or administer treatment that it considers unreasonable,
unnecessary and/or against the clinical judgment of its professional staff. To assure a safe environment for all
persons | understand that no firearms or other weapons are allowed on CLM premises except by faw enforcement
personnel. If you feel that your rights have been violated, we urge you to contact us at any of the CLM sites or
offices. You may do so by phone or in writing. Address your concerns to The Client Rights investigator at
Center for Life Management, 10 Tsienneto Road, or call 603-434-1577.

Client Signature Date
WHITE COPY TO CLIENT AND YELLOW COPY FOR RECORD

Page 5 of 5
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GEOGRAPHIC AREAS
SERVED

ATKINSON
CHESTER
DANVILLE
DERRY
HAMPSTEAD
NEWTON
PELHAM

- PLAISTOW

SALEM
SANDOWN

WINDHAM



Center for Life Management PH 1

G. NOFA Reporting Charts: Number of Beds, Participants, and Services
Chart 1: Beds

Current Level* New Effort or Projected Level

Beds (if applicable) Change in Effort | (col. 1 +col. 2)
Number of Bedrooms 20
Number of beds 20

Only complete current level if proposed project will expand on current level (e.g., increase from 5 units to 10 units).

Chart 2: Participants

Current Level New Effortor | Projected Level | No. Projected to
. . (if applicable) Change in (col. 1 +col. 2) be served over the
Participants Effort grant term

Number of families with children
Of persons in families with children
a. number of disabled

b. number of other adults

<. number of children

Of single individuals not in families

20
a. number of disabled individuals
a.1. number of disabled individuals
who are chronically homeless

b. number of other individuals

Note: If your project is funded, you will be held responsible for achieving the numbers submitted.

10
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Elizabeth Roth
Chairperson

Ron Lague
Vice Chairperson

Wayne D. White
Secretary

Philip Plante

Jeffrey Rind, MD

Gail Corcoran

Vic Topo

President & CEO

Judi Ryan

Susan Davis

Laura Nelson

Vernon Thomas
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS* FY2014

July 1, 2012 to June 30, 2015

ARY

July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014

July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2016




VICTOR TCPO

President/Chief Executive Officer

Successful 27-year career as clinician, manager and CEO in community mental health organizations located
in Ohio and New Hampshire. Proven ability to lead board and staff with a persistent focus on mission and
achieving results. Talent for exploring new and innovative approaches to delivering traditional and non-
traditional behavioral health care. Possess wide range of knowledge and experience with all service
populations, especially vulnerable persons at high risk. Strengths include:

Board Collaboration

Joint ventures and strategic partnerships
Strong relationship with funders
Community building

e Operations

¢ Reorganization and Reinvention
& Team building and leadership

e Strategic planning

Professional Experience
Center for Life Management — Derry, NH 1999 — Present
President/Chief Executive Officer
Recruited to manage 501(c) 3 comprehensive community mental health center and its title holding
501(c) 2 corporation, entitled West Rock Endowment Association. Began with revenues of 6.5
million and increased to 9 million. Restructured senior management increasing direct reports from

three to six.
Key results:
® Consolidation of three outpatient offices into one newly constructed 28,000 sq. ft.
facility.
¢ Established closer connection with surrounding community utilizing aggressive public
relations strategy.
¢ Guided Board of Directors toward more accountability including higher expectation

from management and individual board members.

® Initiated and created Fund Development which then led to creation of CLM
Foundation.

. Initiated and implemented Corporate Comphancc Program, including selection of
corporate compliance officer.

® Facilitated joint venture with Manchester Mental Health Center involving medical
services.

. Created and implemented strategy to mtegrate mental health care with physical health
care.

® In partnership with CIO, developed and successfully implemented first in the state
Electronic Health Record (EHR) called webAISCE.

Pathways, Inc. — Mentor, OH 1988 - 1999
Chief Executive Officer/Executive Director
Started with managing a small single purpose case management agency with revenues of $486,000
and over 11 years grew revenues to 4 million by expanding services to chronically mentally ill
consumers. Created senior management team and strengthened Board of Directors utilizing shared
vision approach.
Key results:
€ In collaboration with mental health board designed one of Ohio’s first 24 hour 7 days
a week in-home crisis stabilization program called C.B.S. (Community Based
Stabilization).
© Assumed leadership role in transitioning 32 lone-term natiente honlr o ~eee



VICTOR TOPO
-Page 2-

© Positioned organization every year to competitively bid on ever/service provided and
be awarded the service contract. Expanded wide range of services that include
psychiatry, counseling, emergency services and housing.

© Created county’s only Atypical Neuroleptic Medication Program (e.g. Clozaril).

e Pathways’ first long range strategic plan in 1992.

¢ Increased Medicaid revenue from $38,000 in 1989 to $431,210 in 1997.

Community Counseling Center —~ Ashtabula, OH 1983-1988
Case Management Supervisor/Case Manager
Provided direct services and supervision for services to severely mentally disabled persons in the
community. Partnered with local private hospital as well as state hospital.

Key results: _ :
e Transitioned consumers back into supervised and independent living.
® Recruited, trained and managed staff of five case managers.
® Designed and implemented agency’s first case management program.
EDUCATION
Master of Social Werk (MSW)

West Virginia University, Morgantown, WV

Bachelor of Arts (BA)
Siena College, Londonville, NY

Associate of Applied Science (AAS)
Fulton-Montgomery Community College, Johnstown, NY

BOARD/LEADERSHIP POSITIONS
Heritage United Way — Board of Directors

Mental Health Commission — Co-Chair
Consumers and Families Work Group

Statewide Evidenced Based Practice Committee — Co-Chair
Greater Salem Chamber ¢f Commerce — Board of Directors
Greater Derry/Londonderry Chamber of Commerce — Board of Directors

Greater Derry/Salem Regionzal Transportation Council (RTC) -
Chairman, Board of Directors, Derry, NH

Greater Salem Leadership Program — Graduate, Class of 2001



LISA K. MADDEN, MSW, LICSW

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Vice President and Chief Ojrerating Officer, 6/05 — present
The Center for Life Management, Salem, NH
Responsible for the efficient operations of all outpatient clinical systems and residential services

in accordance with al] federal and state requirements.

o Establish and maintain integrated care model allowmg for seamless a access to
services within agency and coordination of scmces with area healthcare providers
and hospitals.

e Continuously improve accountabxhty process, cstabhsh and maintain high
standard of care and services provision.

¢ Responsible for monitoring clinical and adrmmstratlvc costs, revenue generation
and development of annual operating budget.

¢ Assist the Chief Executive Officer in developmg strategic plans, business
dcvclopemcnt, facilities and capital usage.

Consultant, 6/04 — 6/05

Lisa K. Madden, LICSW, LLC
Independent contractos providing consultation services to 2 community counseling center and a

spccnahzed foster care orgamzatxon

Interim Clinic Director, 8/04 — 5/65

Wayside Youth and Family Support, Framingham, MA
Responsible for the turnaround management of a large community counseling center in

Framingbam. Accomplishments include:
Reorganized clinical team, supervisory structure and support staff functions
Implemented necessary performance improvement plans
Hired staff with significantly increased productivity expectations
Assisted in the implementation of a new Performance Management and Billing
System |
o 'Worked diligently to foster a positive work environment through extensive verbal
and written communication; staff involvement in decisions when appropriate;
providing direct feedback when necessary; and by providing support. The goal
was to foster a positive and cooperative “culture” in the clinic,
e Provided senior management with budget reforecast for FY *0S and will assist
with the development of program budget for FY *06. :
Clinical Supervisor, 7/04 — 6/05
The Mentor Network, Lawrence MA
e Provide clinical supervision to MSW's seeking independent licensure.
o Provide training and consultation to the staff on such topics as diagnostic
evaluations, treatment plans and case presentations.
e Provide group support and trauma debriefing afler a critical incident. -

e o o &



Northeast Regional Clinic Director, The Family Counseling Center, 12/99 ~ $/03

The Massechusetts Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Children (MSPCC), Lawrence, MA
Responsible for turn around management of the clinics in the Northeast Region of MSPCC,
specifically the cities of Lawrence, Lynn and Lowell. The clinics had been struggling with
increased turnover of staff, reduced revenue, poor management of contracts, as well as significant
problems in the medical records department. Responsibilities included budget development,
implementation and accountability. Accomplishments include:

& o & o

Grew clinical team from 15 to 32 clinicians in three years. -

Developed Multi-Cultural Treatment Team.

Increased annual third party revenue by 70%.

Increased annual contract revenue by 65%.

Contracts with the Department of Social Services; the Department of Mental Health in
conjunction with the Professional Parent Advocacy League; the Department of Education
and the Community Partnerships for Children and HeadStart.

Organized a successful site visit and program review for re-licensure from the
Department of Public Health (DPH).

Successful site visit by the Council on Accreditation (COA).

Reorganized Medical Records to meet DPH and COA standards; reorganize claims
support resulting in increased revenue received for services rendered and significantly
reduced write-offs.

Participated on the HIPAA Task force—assisted in the development and 1mplcmentanon
of the federally mandated Heslth Information Portability and Accountability Act policies
and procedures for MSPCC.

Clinic Director, The Family Counseling Center, 9/95-12/99

MSPCC, Hyannis, MA
Responsible for the tumn around management of a regional clinic serving children and families on

Cape Cod. The clinic had recently cxpenenced over 70% turnover, significant reduction in
revenue, and a series of very negative stories in the local media because of the agency’s response
to the implementation of managed care. Responsible for marketing and public relations,
redevelopment of a high quality clinical treatment team, increasing revenue and program
development. Accomplishments include:

€
€

o

Grew clinical team from 12 to 37 in three years.

Streamlined intake procedures to increase access to services and reduce wait times.
Increased annual third party revenue by 80%.

Developed consultative relationships with two of Cape Cod’s most well respected

- children’s services providers.

Developed first private/public partnership between MSPCC and a private practice to

- increase the availability of specialty clinical services.

Developed internship program for Master’s level clinician candidates.

Employee Assistance Professzanal Clinical Social Worker, 9/93-7/%95
North Essex Community Mental Health Center, (NECMHC Inc.), Newburyport/Haverhill, MA

Clinical Social Waorker — Intern, 5/93-9/93
NECMHC, Inc., Newburyport/Haverhill, MA



Clinicael Social Worker — Intern, 9/92-4/93
Worcester Childrern’s Friend Society, Worcester, MA

EAP Case Management Supervisor, 4/90-4/93
The Jernberg Corporation, Worcester, A '

EAP Case Manager, 2/89-4/90
The Jernberg Corporation, Worcester, MA

Clinical Counselor 1 & IT
The Carol Schmidt Diagnostic Center and Emergency Shelter, YOU, Inc., Worcester, MA, 10/85 2/89

EDUCATION

University of Connecticut, School of Social Work, West Hartfo'rd, CT
Masters in Social Work, Casework/Administration, August 1993

Clark University, Worcester, MA
Bachelor of Arts, Government/Human Services, May 1985

PROFESSIONAL LICENSE

Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker, MA # 1026094 |

References available upon request.



OBJECTIVE:

PROFESSIONAL
PROFILE:

EXPERIENCE:

EDUCATION:

LICENSES AND
PROFESSIONAL
AFFILIATIONS:

REFERENCES:

MICHAEL J. BERGERON

Executive level position within CLM Center for Life Management.

Twemy-ﬂi/g plus years of extensive clinical background and skills combined With proven administrative
managemeni experience. Reputation for high integrity, loyalty, dependability, hard work, dedication, attention
to detail, and goa! achievement. Proven history of successful program development.

CLM Center for Life Management, Salem, New Hampshire 8/39 to Present VICE PRESIDENT & CHIEF
FINANCIAL OFFICER. Administrative responsibility for Accounting, Accounts Receivable — Accounts Payable,
Payroll, & Facllittes/Operations. Primary responsibiiities for fiscal management & reporting, budget
development, monitoring &nd management, state & vendor contracting, employee benefits negotiations,
facilities management and financing. 11/87 to 9/89 DIRECTOR, CASE MANAGEMENT SERVICES
Complete administrative, operational, and supervisory responsibility for the initial development and angoing -
management of discrete case management services within the context of a multi disciplinary treatment team
model of community support programs. Led the expansion of this service to all children tthrough elders, and
guided the transformation from a fully funded program to a revenue generating one with $1.4 million of annual
billing and significant budget surpluses. Assisted with the design and development of customized network
database system for case management clinical desk top applications. Responsible for State audits resulting in
ninety-five plus.percent contract compliancy ratings over the last five member of management council, budget
commitiee, strategic planning group, missions statement work group, communication commiitee, TBS TQM
initiative, and invited by the board to the CEQ search committee.

Hampstead Hospital, Hampstead, New Hampshire 1 0176 to 1 0187 SENIOR PSYCHIATRIC COUNSELOR
Provided individual, group, and family counseling as well as milieu management services and staff training.

instrumental in the expansion of the counseling role and responsibility . Appointed senior counselor by the
medical director in recognition of this initiative and overall performance.

Prudential Insurance Company, Lawrence, Massachusetts 8/75 to 10176 SPECIAL AGENT
Sales and marketing of complete insurance portfolic including life, health, property-casuaity, and retirement.

Raytheon Con"apany, Andover Massachusetts 5/73 to 3775 GOVERNMENT PROPERTY COORDINATOR
Management of utilization and disposition of govemment property, facilities, tooling, and test equipment in
accordance with contract stipulations. -

Holy Family Hospital, Methuen, Massachusetts 6/70 to 6/72 PSYCHIATRIC COUNSELOR
Provided individuali, group, and family counseling. Assisted with other indicated medical procedures such as
electroconvulsive therapy ,and participated in milieu management and activities.

New Hampshire Cotlege -Graduate Schoo! Of Business, Manchester, New Hampshire M.B.A. Degree -1987

Fitchburg State College -Graduate Schoo!l Of Guidance And Counseling, Fitchburg, Massachuseits 18
Graduate Hours in Counseling Completed -1873 '

Nathanie! Hawthorne College, Antrim New Hampshire B.A. Degree =1971

* |icensed Certified Social Worker Massachuselts License -3028 2 051 181

“ Member in Good Standing National Association Of Social Workers

Available upon request.



Barry C. Quimby

BARRY C. QUIMBY

Summary: Over 18 years experience in community mental health and substance abuse treatment

Vast experience in client advocacy to access mainstream benefits/gainful employment
Knowledge of state/federal regulations and policies governing grant operations
Knowledge of HUD housing/PATH outreach and program operations

Experience:

Center for Life Management- Derry, New Hampshire June 2000-Present

©

Program Mznsger for Housing Development: Responsible for overseeing all HUD funding
including the Shelter Plus Care housing assistance program. Foster relations with local landlords,

Arrange for apartment inspections to meet HUD Quality Standards, Process and complete necessary
file documentation, Advocate for clients within the program to obtain affordable housing, Serve as
liaison to the local Housing Authority. Responsible for HMIS data entry, Annual renewals, APR
submission, and Quarterly reports for all HUD contracts including Beaver Lake Lodge (A HUD
funded residential program). Co-Chair to the New Hampshire Balance of State Continuum of Care
(BOSCOC) (Nominated November 2007) Active participant of NH-HMIS Advisory Committee and
NH HMIS Data Quality Committee. Successful recipient of a second Shelter Plus Care Good
Samaritan grant involving three agencies participating in the NH BOSCOC in 2009. Successful
recipient of NHH Transitional Housing funds for 2 Permanent Housing Program 2010.

PATH Homeless Outreach Supervisor: Successful recipient of PATH funding to CLM.

Responsible for overseeing all aspects of program funding for outreach to homeless individuals in
Western Rockingham County. Provide outreach to identify homeless individuals suffering from
mental illness and homelessness, link to community services for which said individuals are eligible and
assist individuals engaged in obtaining mainstream benefits, housing, legal advocacy, and community
Mental Health / Substance Abuse services. Assisted in the development of Bi-State Technical
Assistance grant from SAMHSA to provide training for PATH providers on legal issues, advocacy,
program improvement, and interstate collaboration to improve services provided to homeless
individuals in New Hampshire and Vermont. Successfully initiated CLM as a pilot program in New
Hampshire for PATH data entry into NH-HMIS.

Case Manzger: Responsible for the direct service planning as part of a multidisciplinary community
support team. Provide Case Management and Functional Support Services to adult clients with mental
illness. Consult with medical / clinical staff; Assist clients with identifying options for employment
and assist with job placement and maintaining employment, Refer clients to community resources;
Provide representative payee services; Promote independent functioning in the community to clients
served; Provide staff training and orientation. Served as Dialectical Behavioral Therapy (DBT) skills
group leader. Trained in DBT Therapy and active member of DBT consultation team. Serve on
CLM’s Safety Commiittee as well as CLM’s Medicare Part D Committee. NH Hospital Liaison.



Barry C. Quimby

Hearbor Homes, Inc., Nashna, New Hampshire November 1993-June 2000

©

Program Msnsger / Residentisl Coordinator: Involved in all aspects of operating a housing and
treatment program for 43 clients living in supported housing in the greater Nashua area, including
policy and regulation adherence for a 14-bed HUD-funded program. Managed 6 full-time and 21 fee-
for-service staff; Fostered relations with local affiliates; Iinproved the clinical sophistication of
program. Implemented training programs, assisted with grant writing, and reduced staff turnover,
HUD certified.

Fee-for-Service Counselor: Worked 1:1 with clients to assist in overall treatment goals. Worked
with administration and management to develop policies and procedures to enbance the day to day
operations of the program. Created training packages to ensure the overall Counselor/Client
relationship is more productive and measurable for both billing and therapeutic productivity.

American Training, Lowell, Massachusetts - April 1998-December 1998

L 2

Progl_'gm Directoi: Directed all aspects of operating a supported housing program for 27 individuals
in the greater Lowell area, including supervision of middle management and direct-care staff, polxcy
and regulation adherence, and fostenng program relations with local affiliates.

South Middlesex Opportunity Council, Framingham, Massachusetts April 1992-April 1998

©

Program Mansger / Site Coordinator: Managed all aspects of operating a group home and
supported housing program for chronic mentally ill adults. Improved program by ensuring licensure
and regulation adherence from Department of Mental Health; Created a results-oriented team
atmosphere for program efficiency; Reduced the program budget deficit during 1996 fiscal year;
Reduced the staff turnover ratio within component; Worked with local and area DMH agencies and
affiliates to improve program relations and reputation.

Supported Housing Coordinator: Coordinated all aspects of a supported housing program for four
mentally ill individuals. Managed staff overseeing clients while increasing program client turnover to
more independent living status; Improved client charting and documentation to ensure DMH licensure;
Improved inter-staff communication to improve efficiency of treatment.

Residential Counselor: Worked in a program that involved transitioning mentally ill individuals from
a hospital setting into community living. Assisted in moving 25 clients from state hospital setting into
group homes located in Metro-west area; Assisted two clients in gaining skills needed to move from
group home into independent living within the community.

Eduncation:
Keene Stzte College, Keene, New Hampshire Graduated May 1991

©

Bachelor of Arts in Industrizl / Social / Counseling Psychology

Gained Independent Study laboratory experience as a Resegrch Assistant organizing and administrating
semantic-priming research studies at Keene State College. Responsibilities included designing experiments,
testing subjects, collecting and analyzing data.



Elise J. Boudrezau LICSW

EDUCATION

LICSW State of New Hampshire 2000
MSW Boston University School of Social Work 1997
Graduht?: Intern  Child and Family Sesvices o 1996

Provided child, family and couples therapy. Performed cusis intervention.
Petformed intake assessments and referred for appropriate services. Taught

Parenting skills groups.
Graduate Intem Philbrook Children’s Center, NH Hospital 1995

Acquired basic diagnostic and assessment skills. Interviewed patients and families.
Petformed and prepared psychosocial assessments. Conducted individual therapy with

patients.

BA Sociology St. Joseph’s College, Standish, ME 1990

WORK HISTORY

Center For Life Management 12/97 to Ptresent
Clinical Supervisor 2/04 to Present
Clinician , 1/09 to Present
Clinical Case Manager 12/97 t0 1/09
Clinician-Child and Adolescent Services 05/98 to 1/02

Clinical Supervisor: duties involve providing clinical and administrative supervision to
clinicians, case managers and FSS team leaders; review and approval of documentation
including intakes, treatment plans, eligibilities and progress notes; program development;
training new clinicians on process, clinical skills and documentation.

Clinician: duties involve overseeing the treatment team for consumers on the case load,
developing the clinical treatmest plan, assessing symptoms and functioning status to
determine eligibility for state funded services, conducting intake assessments, conducting
audits of clinical documentation to meet state standatds, providing individual therapy to

consumers with severe and persistent mental illness.
Clinical Case Manager: All of the duties of a clinician combined with referral for

additional services, linkage with community resoutces, monitoring and maintenance of
benefits, coordination with other agencies and community resources and supports.

COURT APPOINTED SPECIAL ADVOCATES(CASA)-Volunteer 9/93 to 5/97

Advocacy and representation in court for abused and neglected children



Adult Outpatient Clinician. Center for Life Management, Derry, NH. Provide psychotherapy for adult outpatient clients;
Communicate with clinical and medical staff regarding clients and clinical practice; Conduct family therapy sessions;
Complete intake assessments and evaluations on new clients; Form diagnostic formulations and individual service plans
with clients; Provide individual and group supervision to agency employees and interns; Complete substance abuse
assessments/ evaluations; Attend staff meetings; Maintain clinical documentation; Establish and maintain relationships
with referral sources and community supports. August 2007 - Present.

Student Assistance Program Counselor. Second Start, Concord, NH. Consult with staff and administration on issues
related to policy, training, interventions, and education; Provide individual and group counseling to students; Complete
substance abuse assessments/evaluations; Meet with families and provide education and support on vatious topics;
Respond to student and school crses as needed; Attend staff meetings; Maintain clinical documentation; Establish and
maintain relationships with local community agencies and organizations. March 2007 - July 2007.

Residential Program Manager. WestBridge Communtty Services, Manchester, NH. Coordinated staffing of residential dual
disorders program to ensure required level of setvice to clients; Provided direct supervision to staff; Worked with other
members of the leadership team to provide ongoing program development; Provided individual and group counseling;
Fadilitated and co-facilitate Family Education and Support sessions; Reviewed all admissions documentation for
completeness; Ensured program compliance with local, state and federal regulations; Identified and took corrective
actions to address maintenance issues with facility; Communicated with the treatment team daily on participant progress;
Supported staff in understanding and assisting participant needs. October 2005 - February 2007.

Residential Counselor. WestBridge Community Services, Manchester, NH. Assisted clients with co-occurring disorders in
working towatds goals identified during intake process; Facilitated and co-facilitated group counseling/thetapy sessions;
Maintained working relationships with participants, families, agendies, and resources; Responded to client crises and
emergencies; Documented developments and impottant events in accordance with clinical policies; Attended staff
meetings, case conferences, and required trainings; Served as a role mode] through positive, appropriate conduct and
participation at agency events. September 2005 - October 2005.

Outpatient Therapist/LADC. Carroll County Mental Health, Wolfeboro, NH. Petformed formal substance abuse
assessments for coutts and multiple offender programs; Worked with clients on an ongoing basis and assisted with the
development of treatment plans; Counseled clients in individual and family formats to work towards established goals;
Maintzined working relationships with agencies and resources; Responded to client crises and emergencies; Documented
developments and important events in accordance with clinical policies. August 2003 - August 2004.

Program Supesvisor. Child and Family Services, Manchester, NH. Developed and supervised outpatient/intensive outpatient
substance abuse treatment program; Recruited and trained program staff; Provided daily supervision of clinical team;
Coordinated team’s efforts for interdisciplinary approach to treatment; Facilitated team meetings and intra and inter
agency communications; Oversaw the development of the treatment protocols and schedule of services; Reported to the
Community Advisory Board on program development, service volume and resource allocation challenges; Worked dlosely
with consulting medical services to insure that individual tteatment plans wete approptiate; Insured that all program
counselors implemented individual treatment plans; Served as primaty counselor for up to six clients, providing
individual, group and family counseling; Documented and maintained individual client records; Supervised all clinical
documentation by conducting chart program reviews. August 2002 - June 2003.

Program Director. Phoentx House, Phoenix Academy at Dublin, Dublin, NH. Planned, implemented and managed staffing to
ensure required level of setvice to clients; Ensured training and clinical supervision were provided; Directed and evaluated
contract utilization and programming to meet requitemnents and achieve contract renewal; Ensured progtam compliance
with local, state and federal regulations; Ovetsaw community mobilization and local fundraising activities; Developed
budget and monitored and reported to supervisor on budget line items; Conducted and monitored the occurrence of case
conferences and staff, safety, and quality assurance meetings; Led staff to understand and cooperatively undertake actions

to meet client needs. January 2001 - August 2002.

Assistant Program Director. Phoenix House, Phoenix Academy at Dubitn, Dublin, NH. Ditectly supesvised clinical staff and
provided and/or oversaw clinical staff training; Oversaw record keeping, caseload management, quality assurance, and
utilization review as directed; Monitored balance of clinical, educational recreational, cultural, and public relations
activities; Monitored the formulation and completion of treatment plans, progress notes, and group notes; Assisted in
planning future programming, budgeting, and compliance with local, state, and federal regulations; Promoted the
organization through positive role modeling and participation at special events; Managed a speafic caseload and nravided

fn Aot dial oratin and fFamily counseline: Assnrmed cane e



NICHOLAS I). PREIFER, MSW, LADC - PAGE 2

WoRK EXPFERIENCE (CON'T)
Substance Abuse Counselor. Marathon/ Phoenix House, The Lodge at Dublin, Dublin, NH. Performed client screening
intake, ofientation, and assessment functions necessary to complete admission; Assisted clients in development of f
individual treatment plans and monitored their progress; Counseled clients in individual, group, and family formats;
Maintained working relationships with agencies, resources and families; Responded to client crises and emergendies;
Documented developments and important events in accordance with clinical policies; Attended staff meetings, case
conferences, and required trainings; Served as a role model through positive, appropdate conduct and participation at
agency events. July 1997 - September 1999. :
Awake Overnight Counselor. Marathon/Phoenix House, The Lodge at Dublin, Dublin, NH. Assisted residents with clinical
issues as needed; Maintained professional relationship with clients; Conducted rounds of dommitory to assure the i)xesmce
and safety of residents; Responded to emergency situations; Maintained records; Attended staff meetings; Served as 2 role

model. May - July 1997.

Counselor. Country Aeres of New England, Gilum, NH. Provided consultation services to staff and administration
pertaining to substance abuse; Fadlitated 2 weekly group focusing on substance abuse and mental health issues with
adolescent females; Maintained records to document weekly counseling sessions. September 1997 - September 1999.

 Child Development Specialist. Country Aees of New England, Gilsum, NH. Assisted adolescent fernales with recovery
goals vtilizing counseling skills; Fadilitated groups; Engaged in recreational activities with therapeutic value; Assisted
residents with independent living skills; Transported residents to various destinations; Maintained professional récords;
Attended vatious meetings and workshops; Developed relationships with staff and residents. October 1995 - May 1997,.

EDUCATION
Master of Social Work. University of New Hampshire, Durham, NH. 2005.

Bachelor of Asts in Personality/Social Psychology. Keene State College, Keene, NH. 1997.
Associate of Science in Human Services/Mental Health. New Hampshire Technical Institute, Concord, NH. 1995.

GRADUATE FIELD PLACEMENTS
Concord Hospital Employee Assistance Program (EAP). Concord, NH. September 2004 - May 2005.

Northetn New Hampshite Mental Health and Developmental Services - Carroll County Mental Health. Wolfeboro, NH.
September 2003 - May 2004.

RELEVANT CERTIFICATIONS, TRAININGS & COMMITTEES

¢ License in Alcohol and Drug Counseling (LADC) - State of New Hampshire. Since 2002.
¢ Member of the National Association of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors NAADAC). Since 2003.
¢ Member of the New Hampshire Alcohol and Drug Abuse Counselors Assodation NHADACA). Since 2003.
¢ Nonviolent Crisis Intervention - Certified Instructor. May 2000-2003; November 2006-2007.
¢ Fadlitator for the State of New Hampshire Division of Alcohol and Drug Abuse Prevention and
Recovery (DADAPR) Best Practices Workgroup on, “Implementing Best Practices for Adolescent Substance Abuse

Treatment”. November 2002,
¢ Quality Assutrance Review Panel - Phoenix Houses of New England. Novembet 2001.

o State of New Hampshire, Buteau of Child Care Licensing - Residential Rules Review Committee. February - June 2001.
¢ Quality Assurance Committee (residential adult and adolescent substance abuse programs) -

Phoenix Houses of New England, Dublin, NH. January 2000 - August 2002.
o Internal Quality Improvement Reviewer - Phoenix Houses of New England. October 2000 - August 2002.

o Instructor at Keene State College (Adventure Therapy & Expenential Learning as part of “"Adyanced Special Topics in Chemtcal
Dependeney”). September 1999 - May 2001.

FERENCES
Available upon request.



CLM_CENTER FOR LIFE MANAGEMENT
Permanent Housing For Homeless Disabled Project
Beaver Lake Lodge

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & KEY EXECUTIVE STAFF

Total HUD
Position Annual Salary Allocation Percent
CEO $127.118.00 0.05 %
CFO $108,004.00 0.05%

COO $100,923.00 2%



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Continuum of Care Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Community Bridges 2-Whitmey Road 70 Pembroke Road
Concord, NH 03301
1.5  Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
(603) 226-3212 010-042-7927-102-0731 June 30, 2015 $113,896.00
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number

Eric D. Borrin

(603) 271-9558

<

?/eomraftor Signature
\ pat

.
Z ,-./}/

1.12

(2

a Y

Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

ecczf:&e»@ U\%\

OC‘%_ 2—-&{2_(_,\)*11

V|
1.13 Acknowledgement: State of [!ﬂ , County of

On 4/ / L/before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

>

person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.
1.12.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace ‘ SHERRY L. HARDING, Notary Public
) My Commission Expires May 9, 2017

ISeal] OJ\ W
1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary@ce of the Peace \B

éh&@% oo ﬂ% , Paecker. of N o Resource g
1.14 State Agency Sign e 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory

N, A A s LS
Y COC, 7 P Ca

1.16 Approval by the N.H. Departl/ne/nt of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)
7P % o Y74y
1.18 Approval by the Govy{'nor and Executive Council 7

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Continuum of Care Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION. S o )
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address “
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
‘Office of Human Services B Concord, NH 03301} B
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Communily Bridges 2-WhhreyRoud 70 Pembroke Road

Concord, NH 03301
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7  Com pTetion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number

(603) 226-3212 010-042-7927-102-0731 June 30, 2015 $113,896.00
1.9 Cbntracting Officer for State Xéency 7 '1.10  State Agency Telep"hone Number B ]
Eric D. Bonin (603) 271-9558
1.u,¥fn;trfzwtor Signature - _1_‘1_2, Name and Title of Contractor Signatory }

‘\

4 ), - (/ <. sF C-/C 6‘53-'\%
Ve RIS A

1.13 Acknowledgement; State of /\{/H . County of

On L{/ / l,/before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace . SHERRY L. HARDING, Notary Public

. ) - My Commission Expires May 9, 2017
s A..q_—

L

[Seal) » \ ek
1.132 Name and Title of Notsr \/or Judtice of the Peace

NN d/kég”\&(w(\’»}- Q{ FD\@C;(’O&O@HMM@?SOM&S

1.14  State Agency Signature 1115 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory
//;/ . : Al 0y frn (ﬂ/( )
AN l i I
) s (0(,/;1/ {W%

1.16 Approval by the N, H. Dcpm tment of Administration, Division of Personnel (j (fapphcablé)

By: Director, On:
1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execu‘tibn_)

0 )
By: )&_ e v '}" fL ¢ / Ovn: V’/ 7t //

118 Apprd\'nl by the GO\;J‘IN)I' and Executive Council

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(**Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity™), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Otficer’s decision shall be final for the State.
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.-H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers” Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers” Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Continuum of Care Program

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1.

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care Grant.
The State has applied for the Continuum of Care Grant and will continue to perform due
diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no representation that it
will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or
payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the State’s receipt of
federal funds applied for in the Continuum of Care Grant.

2. SERVICES

2.1.

22

23.

24,

2.5.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, the Contractor
shall provide a permanent housing program that shall serve six (6) homeless individuals
with disabilities.

The goal of this program is to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals to
permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

To be eligible for contract services, individuals must be homeless as defined in HUD
regulations. The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate documentation.

The Contractor shall provide these services according to HUD regulations as outlined in
Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578 Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
Transition to Housing: Continuum of Care Program interim rule, and other written HUD
policies and directives.

Each program participant shall have an employment assessment and employment
goals included in the individual service plan, as appropriate.

3. PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

3.1.

3.2.

The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report: Within thirty (30) days after the Completion Date,
an Annual Performance Report (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that
summarizes the results of the Project Activities, showing in particular how the
Project Activities have been performed. The Annual Performance Report shall
be in the form required or specified by the State.

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State.

All programs under this contract are required to be licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS).
Programs under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time
required for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through
the following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials R"Q:\_
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

3.3. Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the BHHS.

4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities
and documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably
interfere with contractor performance.

4.3. The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.

4 4. Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of
the contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is
completed and all questions arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

4.5. Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the
BHHS.

5. FINANCIAL

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program agreement value specified in Exhibit B of this agreement
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

5.1.1. Operating expenses

5.1.1.1. Eligible operating expenses include maintenance and repair of housing,
property taxes and insurance (including property and car), scheduled
payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the
system and expected replacement cost), building security for a structure
where more than fifty percent of the units or area is paid for with grant
funds, utilities (including electricity, gas and water), furniture and
equipment.

5.1.1.2. Ineligible costs include rental assistance and operating costs in the same
project, operating costs of emergency shelter- and supportive service-
only facilities, maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of
maintaining and repairing the housing are included in the lease.

5.1.2. Supportive services

5.1.2.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations
in 24 CFR 578.53. Eligible services are available to those individuals
actively participating in the permanent housing program.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials &"

Page 2 of 5
Date 5 -»S - S"‘L



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

5.1.2.2. Eligible costs include mental health services, case management
services, salaries of Contractor staff providing supportive services,
reasonable one-time moving costs (truck rental and hiring a moving
company), child-care costs for establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers for children from families experiencing
homelessness (including providing meals and snacks and
comprehensive and coordinated developmental activities), education
services, employment assistance and job training skills, housing search
and counseling services, legal services (fees charged by licensed
attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys,
for advice and representation in matters that interfere with the homeless
individual or family's ability to obtain and retain housing), outpatient
health services, transportation services, and utility deposits.

5.1.2.3. Ineligible costs include staff training, fundraising, conference attendance,
and court fines incurred by participants.

5.1.3. Rental Assistance

5.1.3.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals
and families. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program
participant who is already receiving rental assistance, or living in a
housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating assistance through
other federal, State, or local sources.

5.1.3.2. The rental assistance may be short term, up to 3 months of rent; medium
term, for 3-24 months; or long-term, for longer than 24 months of rent
and must be administered in accordance with the policies and
procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a)(9) and 24 CFR 578.51.

5.1.3.3. Long-term rental assistance must be administered by someone other
than the Contractor. The Contractor must have a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU), with a State, unit of general local government, or
a public housing agency.

5.1.3.4. Short or medium term rental assistance provided under the Rapid
ReHousing program component is not subject to requirements in 578.51
(b), and is not required to be administered by a state, unit of local
government, or public housing agency.

5.1.3.5. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to
exceed 2 months of rent. An advance payment of the last month’s rent
may be provided to the landlord, in addition to the security deposit and
payment of first month’s rent.

5.1.3.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable.
The contractor must determine whether the rent charged for the unit
receiving rental assistance is reasonable in relation to rents being
charged for comparable unassisted units, taking into account the
location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management and
maintenance of each unit.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

5.1.3.7. The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month'’s rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant.

5.1.3.8. Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

5.1.3.9. The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental
assistance: Tenant-based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 578.51.

5.1.3.10. Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program
participants choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside.
When necessary to facilitate the coordination of supportive services,
recipients and sub recipients may require program participants to live in
a specific area for their entire period of participation, or in a specific
structure for the first year and in a specific area for the remainder of their
period of participation. Short and medium term rental assistance
provided under the Rapid ReHousing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

5.1.3.11. Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between
the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private,
nonprofit organization, or a community mental health agency established
as a public nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in
housing owned or leased by the sponsor.

5.1.3.12. Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the
owner of an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the
subsidized units to program participants. Program participants will not
retain rental assistance if they move.

5.1.3.13. For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance,
program participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at
least one year, which is terminable for cause. The leases must be
automatically renewable upon expiration for terms that are a minimum of
one month long, except on prior notice by either party.

5.1.4. Administrative costs.

5.1.4.1. Administrative costs include: Preparing program budgets, schedules and
amendments, developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements, developing interagency agreements and agreements with
sub recipients and contractors to carry out program activities, preparing
reports and other documents related to the program for submission to
HUD, evaluating program results against stated objectives, travel costs
incurred for official business in carrying out the program, administrative
services performed under third party contracts or agreements (including
such services as general legal services, accounting services, and audit
services), and other costs for goods and services required for
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

5.2.

5.3.

54.

5.5.

administration of the program (including such goods and services as
rental or purchase of equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and
rental and maintenance, but not purchase, of office space).

The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73 (a) (b) (c).

5.2.1. The contractor must match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no less
than twenty-five percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources.

5.2.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 4.1. The Contractor must have written approval
from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water);
however, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD
regulations (24 CFR 583.315). Other services such as cable, air conditioning,
telephone, Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's
option.

The contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract or counted as
match complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program
Exhibit B

METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Continuum of Care Program

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Continuum of Care Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.235

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Continuum of Care Program

Total Amount Continuum of Care Program,;

July 1, 2014 — June 30, 2015: not to exceed $113,896.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;
Supportive Services: $47,627.00

Operating Costs $63,349.00

Administrative Costs: $2.920.00

Total program amount: $113,896.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental assistance and
administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the
time period specified above.

2. REPORTS

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit B

3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE

3.1.

3.2

3.3.

Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor for operations, supportive services,
leasing, rental assistance and administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing programs under the
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act),
Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550) in an amount not to exceed as
specified above. Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a
monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of
each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as designated by the
State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The Contractor shall
provide additional financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or
Audited Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the
Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such review the State shali disallow
any items of expenses that are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be
in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows
costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any
amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture
pursuant to 24 CFR Subsection 576.55. The funds authorized to be expended under
this Agreement shall be used only for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental
assistance and administration or reimbursement for expenditures for operations,
supportive services, leasing, and rental assistance and administration, provided by the
Contractor for the project period and operating years of the Continuum of Care Program
as approved by HUD and in accordance with the Continuum of Care Program
Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part578.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

4.1.

4.2.

The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed amount
for the Continuum of Care Program as specified in this Exhibit, as defined by HUD
under the provisions of P.L. 102-550 and applicable regulations.

The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the
contract price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and
written approval from the State.
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4.3. Conformance to OMB Circular A-110: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance
with procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular A-110.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and
any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in
direct operations of the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
Attachment G of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or
such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment shall be made
according to EXHIBIT B, Section 3.2 of this Agreement.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1.

Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established:;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;
Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ‘_@P
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations” and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: Al information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protacols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: |n the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor’'s performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor’s
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’'s performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C — Special Provisions Contractor Initials ( Z/Q_a"

CU/DHHS110713 Page 4 of 4 Date_c~\~{%



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. in
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language,;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1.  Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee wili
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended,; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: Cow~e -""7 Bes JJ es
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S8.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: € o macw -4:4/(/ Br\/&ﬁ es

-\~ \¢

Date Name: (23 U &MSXQA.BMX,\
Title: ¢ \“,_\., A N NN N
Exhibit E — Certification Regarding Lobbying Contractor Initials (Z—CI-

CU/MDHHS/110713 Page 1 of 1 Date j ~\—- B



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION

1.

By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. Ifitis later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

»ou "o

The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and

Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: &owl'ku»\,'-Ly R daos

-y -y P —l
Date Name: anshansan
Title: ié‘ L o M-"? “

Exhibit F — Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor Initials Q’é;rv
And Other Responsibility Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts

to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: C 0 Mv=+ ‘Aj B ‘;f] 25

oy o < e e

Date Name: € o . RarsN2aksag o
Tile:  S_G7 o :™r Onaea

Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials Sgﬁ ’
The Americans With Disabilities Act Compliance
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contractor Name: Coman o W:q,y B‘f.h\b as

A\ -\t
Date Name: (Z oo e hoa
Title: ...u.Jr\ -2 ‘i)-; e oYy
Exhibit G — Certification Regarding Contractor Initials Q—-é:l

Environmental Tobacco Smoke
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit |

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those
parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall
mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

Definitions

1. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

2. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

3. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

4. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term "designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

5. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

6. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

7. “HITECH Act” means the Health information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXIll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

8. “HIPAA” means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

9. ‘“Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and
shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

10. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health
and Human Services.

11. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

12. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

13. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

14. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

15. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured by
a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing
organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

16. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under
45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials IQ/C-'I !
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Healith and Human Services

Exhibit |

Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

1.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

2.1. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;

2.2. Asrequired by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

2.3. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Assaciate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from
the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required
by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such
third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of
such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the
basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such
disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has
exhausted all remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional
restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by
any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

1.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any
use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Assaciate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity's
compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use
and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party
beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate agreements with Contractor’s intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of
this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements,
policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes
of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the
Agreement.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials ZQ‘I-
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit |

6. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by
Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

7. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate
shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

8. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

9. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

10. in the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

11. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the
protections of the Agreement, to such PH! and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains
such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or
all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

1. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

2. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508.

3. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the
Agreement upon Covered Entity’s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials Q
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit |

Miscellaneous

1. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit I, to a Section in
the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

2. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

3. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect
to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

4. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.

5. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be
given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit |
are declared severable.

6. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

Contractor Name: C ovvy « }17 1G9 é& <y
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

1. Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

2OBNONA LN

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: CoWaw :17 3 ( :ol‘a/‘}

S -1y !
Date Name: Qoé KRam s &QAB-.»,%V\
Title: & G2 Avux Y A &
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials ! 2_-£ ’J_t
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: 1843|3010 5

2. Inyour business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

)4 NO YES
If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials _@\
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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State of Neto Hampshive
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that COMMUNITY BRIDGES is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation formed
April 20, 1982. T further certify that it is in good standing as far as this office is

concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREQF, I hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 2" day of April A.D. 2014

ey Skl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

1, &!E“[ 1 2 Smﬂ‘ . i b&[Z ‘ ] '[ESM *El ZZ , do hereby certify that:
{Name of the elected Officef of the Agency. cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of Community Bridges.

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of
the Agency duly held on April 1, 2014.
RESOLVED: That the Executive Director is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said

contract with the State and to execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any
amendments, revisions, or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 1st day of April, 2014.

4. Roy Gerstenberger is the duly elected Executive Director of the Agency.

Qnature of the ETected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of %«M’\JMMJ/L
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ‘_’1 day of sz( , 204

By _Glenn 6"\)0‘(\/
Nyt Qa/T

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)
{Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

INCTARY SEAL}
JULIA A, M. BARTON, Notary Public

My Commission Expires November 6, 2018

Commission Expires:

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations July 1, 2005
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal



Client#: 527344 COMMUBRI
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 04121/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER ﬁguEACT
US! Insurance Services LLC PHONE ¢ ;603 625-1100 | (A, No):
5 Bedford Farms Drive, Ste 200 EMAIL
Bedford’ NH 03110 INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
603 625-1100 INSURER A : Philadelphia Insurance Company 23850
INSURED surer B : @BE Insurance Corporation 39217
Community Bridges INSURER C -
70 Pembroke Road INSURERD:
Concord, NH 03301 '
INSURERE :
INSURERF :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN iS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,

EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INSR TYPE OF INSURANCE ADDLISUBR POLICY NUMBER (MBOIY YY) [(MMIBONYVLY) LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK1143483 03/18/2014|03/18/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PRMIREL R irence) | $100,000
‘ CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | 510,000
. PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | 51,000,000
. GENERAL AGGREGATE 3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - comp/oP AGG | $3,000,000
}—‘ POLICY [—_I RO Loc $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1143483 03/18/2014(03/18/2015 GMeen; o "M 141,000,000
X| ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
j ALL OWNED SCHEDuULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
| X| HIRED AUTOS :8{“605WNED PPRe?aPcEcl‘i'\:;I;\r(nl))AMAGE s
$
A | X|UMBRELLALIAB [X | occur PHUB452037 03/18/2014|03/18/2015 EACH OCCURRENCE $4,000,000
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE 54,000,000
DED | XJ ReTeNTiON 510000 $
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION - QWC4001056 03/18/2014/03/18/2015 X [{G:3 s | [2°
S&ISE%F’:AFEAEAE%E/PE%IUEE/E?XECUTNEII' NIA E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $500,000
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
Eé%%‘é’?é%%’ﬁ lgg OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - PoLicY LIMIT | $500,000
|

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
This Certificate covers all operations usual and customary to the insured's business.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH DHHS
129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

E. 5

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1 of1
#S12342816/M11975732

© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

BXFCA
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» General home maintenance
o Furnace maintenance
o Residence home painting

o Yard maintenance

Please contact John Lindgren, Director of Resource Development at 603-226-3212 x387 to answer any
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Seelye‘Ql Schulz

P.A., Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditors' Report

To The Board of Directors
Community Bridges
Concord, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying finandal statements of Community Bridges (a New
Hampshire non-profit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as
of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related statements of activities and changes in net
assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes

to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finandal
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America; this indudes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of finandal statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, induding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the finandal
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the drcumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

451 Amherst St.

Nashua, N.H. 03063
{603) 886-1900



We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the finandal position of Community Bridges as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and
the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Ak o Py R

February 14, 2014



COMMUNITY BRIDGES

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

June 30, 2013 and 2012

CURRENT ASSETS

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash held for consumers under agency agreements

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $47,050
and $21,827 for 2013 and 2012 respectively

Promises to give
Prepaid expenses

PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT, at cost, net of

accumulated depreciation

CURRENT LIABILITIES

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current portion of long-term debt

Accounts payable
Deferred revenue

Accrued payroll and payroll taxes

Accrued vacation

Held for consumers under agency agreements

LONG TERM DEBT, net of current portion

Notes payable

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

2013 2012
2,867,105 1,210,819
142,266 146,327
1,810,660 2,643,903
18,500 22,725
184,553 138,452
5,023,084 4,162,226
1,585,864 1,485,810
$ 6,608,948 5,648,036
79,605 57,505
2,247,797 1,866,994
855,518 212,553
156,006 265,485
319,542 311,306
142,266 146,327
3,800,734 2,860,170
758,036 738,747
1,974,477 1,996,043
75,701 53,076
2,050,178 2,049,119
6,608,948 5,648,036

The Accompanying Notes Are An Integral Part

Of These Financial Statements.
- 3 -
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COMMUNITY BRIDGES

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

2013

2012

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash recelved from support and revenue
Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Interest received

Interest paid

NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases property and equipment

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from bank financing
Principal payments on debt

NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

CASH, Beginning of Year

CASH, End of Year

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Change in net assets

Adjustments:
Depreciation

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable

Promises to give

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable
Deferred revenue
Accrued payroll

Accrued vacation

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

$ 31,266,925

$ 28,542,004

(29,322,253) (28,795,408)
1,525 1,964
(46,293) (35,302)
1,899,904 (286,742)
(285,007) (425,741)
108,000 277,000
(66,611) (37,143)
41,389 239,857
1,656,286 (472,626)
1,210,819 1,683,445

$ 2,867,105

$ 1210819

$ 1,059 ¢ 183,873
184,953 185,949
833,243 (1,093,517)

4,225 (142)
(46,101) (11,144)
380,803 418,196
642,965 174,688

(109,479) (121,421)
8,236 (23,224)

$ 1899904

$ (286,742)

The Accompanying Notes Are An Integral Part

Of These Financial Statements.
-5
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COMMUNITY BRIDGES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

Community Bridges (the Agency) is a not-for-profit organization established in
May 1983. It contracts with the New Hampshire Department of Health and Human
Services (DHHS) to provide an array of community-based services and support for those
with developmental disabilities located in the Merrimack County area of New Hampshire.
Its major function is the coordination of services and support with those who are
eligible to receive it. The majority of its funding is from federal and state government
programs. Every five years the Agency must be re-designated by the State as an area
agency to provide community services.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. Support is
recorded when received or pledged. Revenue is recorded when services are rendered.
Expenses are recorded when the obligation has been incurred. Net assets and
revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence
of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Agency and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed
stipulations. All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use

unless specifically restricted by donor.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed
stipulations that may or will be met, either by actions of the Agency and/or the

passage of time. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are
classified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as
net assets released from restrictions. Contributions that are restricted by the
donor are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets if the restrictions are
met in the fiscal year in which the contributions are recognized.

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed

stipulations that they be maintained permanently by the Agency. There were no
permanently restricted net assets at June 30, 2013 and 2012.

Contributions

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recorded as made.
All contributions are available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the
donor. Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they
depend are substantially met. Unconditional promises to give due in the next year are

-8-



COMMUNITY BRIDGES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Contributions (Continued)

recorded at their net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give due in
subsequent years are reported at the present value of their net realizable value, using
risk-free interest rates applicable to the years in which the promises are to be received.

Contributions of donated non-cash assets are recorded at their fair values in the
period received. Contributions of donated services that create or enhance non-financial
assets or that require specialized skills, which are provided by individuals possessing
those skills, and would typically need to be purchased if not provided by donation, are
recorded at their fair values in the period received.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from

those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the financial statements, the Agency considers cash in bank
accounts and all other highly liquid investments with an original maturity of less than
three months to be cash equivalents. The only cash equivalents at June 30, 2013 and
2012 were overnight investments in government securities made through commercial

sweep accounts with the Agency’s bank.

Cash Held and Funds Payable for Consumers

The Agency acts as custodian over funds of several consumers for a minimal fee.
Cash is deposited and checks are drawn on a special bank account for the convenience
of consumers. These funds are not the property of the Agency and, accordingly, are
recorded as an asset with a corresponding liability in the same amount on the Agency’s
Statement of Financial Position. These accounts are offsetting and have no impact on

the Agency’s cash flow.
Property and Equipment

The Agency records property and equipment at cost. Major additions and
improvements are capitalized, while ordinary maintenance and repairs are charged to



COMMUNITY BRIDGES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE A. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Pro and Equipment (Continued)

expense as incurred. Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The ranges of the estimated useful lives are:

Years
Buildings and improvements 10-30
Equipment and furniture 5-10
Vehicles 3-5

Income Taxes

The Agency is exempt from income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code.

The Agency's income tax filings are subject to audit by various taxing authorities.
The Agency’s open audit periods are 2009 through 2012. The Agency believes it has
met all the requirements to maintain its not-for-profit status and does not have any
unrelated business income which would result in taxable income. It is the Agency’s
policy to expense when paid any interest and penalties associated with its income tax

obligations.

Bad Debts

The Agency uses the allowance method of accounting for bad debts. An
allowance of $47,050 and $21,827 was required at June 30, 2013 and 2012
respectively, based on specific identification of uncollectible accounts.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been
summarized on a functional basis. Accordingly, costs have been allocated among the
programs and supporting services benefited.

- 10 -



COMMUNITY BRIDGES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE B. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Property and equipment consists of the following at June 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012

Land $ 320,847 $ 314,432
Building and improvements 1,471,186 1,399,287
Equipment and furniture 975,207 958,276
Vehicles 581,760 670,722
Progress payments 28,420 38,689

3,377,420 3,381,406
Less accumulated depreciation 1,791,556 1,895,596

$ 1,585,864 $ 1485810

NOTE C. CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

The Agency received 94% of its funding from Medicaid for the years ended
June 30, 2013 and 2012. Additionally, 94% and 86%, respectively, of the June 30,
2013 and 2012 net accounts receivable balance was due from Medicaid.

Community Bridges maintains accounts at two banks. At June 30, 2012, cash at
one institution totaled $322,853. The account is insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation without limit from December 31, 2010 through December 31,
2012 as it is a non-interest bearing account. At June 30, 2013 the Agency had no cash
balances exceeding FDIC insured limits.

At June 30, 2013 and 2012, the Agency had $3,398,593 and $1,284,643
respectively invested in repurchase agreements that were secured by marketable
securities of federal agencies. The funds were not insured by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation.

NOTE D. OPERATING LEASES

The Agency leases office facilities used for service coordination pursuant to the
terms of a five-year lease that expires in September 2013. The lease provides for two,
two-year renewal options. The lessee is responsible for all utilities, repairs and
maintenance, and insurance. The lessee is also responsible for a pro rata share of the
real estate taxes and common area costs over a base. The lease was amended on
October 15, 2012 to increase the square footage occupied. The base rent in the first
year is $93,875 per annum. The lease amount increases annually up to $139,427 for

year five.

-11 -



COMMUNITY BRIDGES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE D. OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

The Agency leases office facilities used for administrative services pursuant to the terms
of a five-year lease that expires in August 2013. The lessee is responsible for all
utilities, repairs and maintenance, and insurance. The base rent in the first year is
$111,112 per annum. The lease amount increases annually up to $156,452 for year
five. Upon expiration of the lease on August 31, 2013, the Agency declined the option
to renew, continuing as a tenant-at-will through November 1, 2013.

A vehicle lease was entered into in May 2010 at $253 per month for 36 months.
The Agency is responsible for all maintenance and repairs.

A vehicle lease was entered into in May 2013 at $273 per month for 36 months.
The Agency is responsible for all maintenance and repairs.

The Agency also leases office equipment pursuant to the terms of a 63 month
lease at $962 per month. This new lease replaced a 36 month lease which expired in

2013.

Total facilities rental expense, including rent payments for consumers, was
$296,536 and $314,843 for the Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The future minimum rental payments due under these operating leases are as
follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount
2014 $ 61,099

NOTE E. LINE OF CREDIT

As of June 30, 2012, the Agency had established a $1,600,000 working capital
line of credit with a local bank. On February 7, 2013 the agency was granted a
temporary increase in the line of credit to $3,100,000. The temporary increase expires
on September 12, 2013. Interest at the Wall Street Journal prime rate is due monthly,
and principal with accrued unpaid interest are due on demand. The line of credit is
secured by all assets of the Agency. There was no outstanding balance at either

June 30, 2013 or 2012.

-12-



COMMUNITY BRIDGES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE F. NOTES PAYABLE TO BANK

Notes payable to bank consisted of the following as of June 30:

2013 2012

6.84% mortgage note payable bank, monthly

installments of $972 of principal and interest,

through December 2022, secured by land

and building $ 81,393 ¢ 87,273

1.00% note payable state public agency, monthly
installments of $863 of principal and interest,
through September 2014, secured by vehicles 12,865 23,041

6.90% mortgage note payable bank, monthly
installments of $1,291 of principal and interest,

through September 2040, secured by land and
building 190,068 192,356

Variable-rate mortgage note payable bank,
secured by land and building, payable in monthly
installments of principal and interest through
January 2027. Interest is based on the Three Year
Treasury Bill Adjusted to a constant maturity plus
a margin of 2.75 percentage points. As of June 30,
2013 the interest rate was 3.14%, with monthly
installments of $479. As of June 30, 2012, the

interest rate was 4.17%, with monthly instaliments
of $511 63,259 66,729

6.52% mortgage note payable bank,
monthly installments of $1,322 of principal and

interest, through February 2025, secured by
land and building 128,744 135,950

5.75% note payable bank,
monthly installments of $769 of principal and

interest, through March 2014, secured by a
vehicle 6,773 15,335

-13-



COMMUNITY BRIDGES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE F. NOTES PAYABLE TO BANK (Continued)

6.24% note payable bank,
monthly installments of $1,817 of principal and

interest, through April 2027, secured by land
and building 201,660 210,568

2.95% note payable bank,
monthly installments of $1,940 of principal and
interest, through January 2018, secured by vehicles 99,545 -

1% note payable state public agency,
monthly installments of $1,111 of principal and
interest, through July 2017, secured by a

vehicle 53.334 65,000
837,641 796,252
Less current portion (79,605) (57,505)

$758036 $738747

Annual principal payments for the next five years are as follows:

2014 $ 79,605
2015 68,368
2016 68,530
2017 71,434
2018 52,347
Thereafter 497,357

$ 837,641

NOTE G. ADVANCED PAYMENTS

The State of New Hampshire changed its Medicaid billing services provider in
2013. During the time period of the change, the Agency was unable to receive approval
for claims or receive timely payment on approved claims. The State of New Hampshire
advanced payments for services rendered during the period. The advanced payments
which totaled $2,102,388 at June 30, 2013 were reported as a reduction of accounts

receivable.

-14 -



COMMUNITY BRIDGES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE H. DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue consists of the following at June 30:

2013 2012
Family Support funding in excess of expenditures $ 149,795 ¢ 212,553
START Center 500,000 -
Bureau of Developmental Services 2014 funding 205,723 -

$ 855518 $ 212,553

NOTE I. TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

Temporarily restricted net assets are available for the following purposes or
periods at June 30, 2013 and 2012:

2013 2012
Partners in health $ 4,752 $ 6,948
Employee wellness 16,640 7,908
Competency and credentialing system 50,713 34,624
Autism grant 3,596 3,596

$ 75701 ¢ 53,076

NOTE J. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Agency maintains a 403(b) plan for its employees. All employees are eligible
to contribute to the plan; there are no restrictions for length of service. The Agency
does not contribute to the plan.

-15-



COMMUNITY BRIDGES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

NOTE K. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of financial instruments including cash, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and short-term debt approximated fair value as of June 30, 2013 and
2012, because of the relatively short maturity of these instruments. The carrying value
of long-term debt, including the current portion, approximated fair value as of June 30,
2013 and 2012, based on current borrowing rates for loans with similar maturities.

NOTE L. DATE OF MANAGEMENT EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management has evaluated events through February 14, 2014, the date that the
financial statements were available to be issued.

The Agency entered into a lease for office facilities used for administration,
service coordination and operations, effective November 2013, pursuant to the terms of
a six-year lease that expires in October 2019. The lease provides for two, two-year
renewal options. The lessor is responsible for all repairs and maintenance, and
insurance. The lessee is responsible for a pro rata share of the utilities, real estate
taxes and common area costs over a base. The base rent in the first year is $263,569
per annum. The lease amount increases annually up to $305,541 for year six.

- 16 -



COMMUNITY BRIDGES
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

2012-2013

Glenn Stuart — Consumer

New England College: Theatre Dept.

Member since: June 2005

President

Kristin Phillips — Consumer
Co-owner -Public Relations Firm
Member since: March 2010T

Vice President

David Ossoff — Non-Consumer Treasurer
Owner, Endicott Trading Corp

Member since: September 2010

William Cohen — Non-Consumer Secretary

Business & Financial Consultant
Member since: November 2006

Alice Young — Consumer
Member since: May 2012

Betsy McNamara — Consumer
Development Consultant
Member since: May 2002

Bob Quinn - Consumer

Government Affairs Director, NH Association of Realtors

Member since: September 2010

Bradley Hosmer — Non-Consumer
Owner/President Beta Consulting Group, Concord

Member since: March 1997

Frank Davis

Retired Teacher

N.H. House of Representatives
House District — Merrimack 20
Member since: January 2012




Wayne E. Colby

Professional 2007 to present Community Bridges Concord, NH
experience Assistant Director of Residential and Day Services

= Hire and direct Program Managers who supervise direct support staff in providing
supports and services for adults with inteliectual disabilities.

= Develop budgets for providing services.
= Assure timely submission of reports and delivery of a high quality of services.

2003 to 2007 Community Bridges ' Concord, NH
Director/Co-Director of Visions

e Oversaw residential and day supports to more than 100 individuals with
intellectual disabilities.

» Provided supervision to Program Managers and others.

s Developed budgets and individual supports for new programs.

* Provided crisis management as needed. _

e Maintained collaborative relationships with families and guardians.

e Represented the department within and outside the agency.

o Participated in agency planning and agency wide initiatives.

» Provided continuous quality improvement activities and management.

s  Supported individuals to establish and maintain community connections.

1997 to 2003 Community Bridges Concord, NH
Program Manager

. Coordinated educational, training, vocational, psychological and community
supports for adults with intellectual disabilities living in community settings, staffed
residences, and with families.

) Schgduled 24 hours a day, 365 days a year supports for the programs.

o Supervised staff who directly provided supports to individuals.

) Prepared and implemented budgets for ten programs.

o Found creative ways to educate the community about persons with intellectual
disabilities.

) Ensured that certification standards and agency policies and procedures were
upheld throughout the delivery of services.

) Recruited, hired, and supervised staff assigned to provide direct supports.



Education

Professional
Awards

Community
activities

Wayne E. Colby

Professional Experience - continued

1979 to 1997 New England College Henniker, NH
Program Director

s Designed and implemented community service programs for individuals moving
from institutions and for others with intellectual disabilities.

o Performed tasks of Program Manager as listed above with additional tasks of
writing grant proposals, securing funding, and negotiating contracts with agencies
and subcontractors.

¢ Interacted with state and federal agencies, families, and the community to
promote services, funding, and services for individuals.

1978 Antioch New England Keene, NH
Master of Arts in Counseling Psychology

1973 " Boston State College (now UMass-Boston) Boston, MA
Bachelor of Science in English with history and psychology minors
Degree awarded summa cum laude

2002 Noyes Award for recognition of leadership skills

1999 Community Bridges Certificate of Appreciation for excellence in service
innovations and workflow '

1993 Rehlander Award in recognition of outstanding service to Region IV

Developmental Services clients

2000 to present Town Moderator—Town of Henniker, NH

1995 to 2008 Trustee, Tucker Free Library Board of Trustees, Treasurer 10 years
1985 to 1994 Selectman, Henniker Board of Selectman, Chaim\an's years

1981 to 1984 . Henniker School Board, Chairman 1 year

1984 to 2008 Henniker Lions Club, President, Secretary, Treasurer for 2 or more

years each



Jennifer Putorek

Objective : A position utilizing and expanding upon current skitls in management and
customer service.

Career Highlights / Qualifications

v

14 years experience in direct care setting
» Able to multitask in a demanding setting

» Experience for 2 years as Assistant Program Manager, providing support for
all aspects of residential program aloug with direct care.

Assist in maintaining good communication with support organizations and
family members

A Y

Provide support for maintaining all medication documentation, reports and
filing for yearly certification

¢

» Honest, hardworking, flexible and accommodating in weeting needs of the
peoplc carced (or and stafl under my supervision.

» Computer skills including Ward, Excel, Interaet and email

10 yeurs experience owaing and operating small online sales company

Y

Experience

Community Secvices Council of New Hampshire 3/1997-1-09, 5/10 to
Present  Shecp Davis Road, Pemwbroke, NH

Assistaut Program Manager 5/10-Present Continued to maintain ali
responsibilities described below plug assisted with



"_f

A&

Supervision of 8-10 employees iu 2 24/7 program

Traiving of new employees and any necessary training updates to current
employees

On-call to provide any needed ndvice, intervention or informatiou to staff or
medical personnel

Reviewing daily, weckly snd monthly documentation of progress, medication
and needs of the individuals supported.

Tracking monies allocated for Petty Cash . recreational activities, medication
expenses and housebold cxpenses

Preparing for anuual inspection conducted by the State of New Hampshire
and atiending trainings on yearly npdates to regulations of New Hampshire

Attended numerous confereuces specific for the needs of the individuals
supported

o Brain Injury Conference for 2 years

o The Amazing Briiu

> How to Deal with Difficult People

o} Mmmgiug.the Diabetic Pntient

= Support Qut In the Community

¢ Social Role Valorization

¢ HIPAA (Annually rencwed)

o Bloodborne Pathogens (Aunuaily Renewed)

o Medication Teaining (Annaally Renewed)

o Completed Direct Support Prolessional Training



* Thisincluded completing 11 core courses in the College of Direct
Support through the Moore Center

Residentisl Care Assistant 3/97-1/09 (Community Services Council of New
Hampshire)

Responsiblie for providing a safe , healthy and productive environment for the
individuals supported.

\)

>

‘f

¥

»

Assisting with activities of daily living
Dispensing prescribed medications

Transporting and providing accurate reporting of needs, allergies and
condition to doctors, therapists and other medical personnel

Following throngh with treatment plans prescribed
Setting up appointments
Fitling out daily, weekly and mouthly reports coucerning progress

Preparing meals within dietary restrictions of diabetes, renal disease and
hyperteusion,

Communicating with support organizations and family mewmbers

Supporting individuals in community settings, providing safe transportation
along with 2 respectable representation while in their community

Supporting individuals in places of employwent or volunteer positions

L.akes Region Community Services Council 10/08-Present
Lacounio, New Humpshite

Fawily Directed Support Professional (sub-contractor)

»)

Providing support for family member with Down’s Syndrowe. This support
includes but ismot limited to



o Community support in a volunteer position
o Also proper support at doctors appointments

o Transportation plus support at places of employment sud recreational
aclivities

V1.J Sales and Service 9/98- Present Self-employed

# 1 operate a simall online sales company. It involves purchasing
items for resale on auction sites, Also included is customer
service, shipping, communication and (racking of income

Skills
Dependable, hard working, responsible in accomplishing a project to completion. | take
pride in being refiable to the point that [ am present at work even when weather
conditions are not favorable and when wy health is not at 100%5.

Very good communications skills and ablilty to multitask in a busy environment

Strong sense of duty to do my job often couses me to go above and beyond what is
required of me.

References availible upon request
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Mary Brown

ERja.
SEP 1313 1514

Objective

1 am a highly motivated, responsible, hardworking, conscientious individual with almost
10 years experience at doing administartive workalong with direct care. Proven ability to
meet deadlines/effectively organize, with and excellent track record of achieving results
in a timely manner. Known for my compassion to others I support, getting work done on
time, displaying leadership qualities/motivational skills/etc. I am secking the Assistant
Manager position at Franklin Falls Farm where I can bring immeditae value and strengths
whilst developing my current skills further.

Qualifications

Aunswering mufti line phone, Correspondence knowledge, Medical Record filing, Taking
down peoples requests for medical information, I also know how to abstract, Knowledge
of inventory, stocking supplies, and ordering supplies, Computer skills,

Microsoft ,outlook express, internet knowledge, customer services, managing our
database system and our web site, keeping track of all confidential files, and student files,
scheduling classes, every day office duties, monthly, yearly reports, daily notes,
attendance logs daily, training of new staff, fire drills,.Also taking care of people with
developmental disablities out in the community during volunteer jobs, paid employment
or just community activities.

Education
High School

Relevant Experience

07/13- Now - Community Bridges - supporting individuals for 6 hours in the community
while volunteerin, doing paid employment, or community activities, all office work,
filling, attendance logs daily, keeping all books in order, yearly certification, fire drills,
training new staff, keeping main book and daily books in order, maiking list of missing
documents and tracking them down interaction with all home providers and parents,
monthly calendars and planning activities.

05/09-07/13- Community Service Council of NH- supporting individuals for 6 hours in
the community while volunteerin, doing paid employment, or community activities, all
office work, filling, attendance logs daily, keeping all books in order, yearly certification,
fire drills, training new staff, keeping main book and daily books in order, maiking list of
missing documents and tracking them down interaction with all home providers and

1
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S?P E‘ b v I
parents, monthly calendars and planning activities. B 13713 gy
06/05-02/09 Lakes Region Community Service Council- Duties included supporting
people and with mental disabilities and bringing them into the public for six hours a day.

11/05- 2007 The J. Jill Group,- Duties include packing peoples orders, receiving returns
and cleaning them then packing them in new bags and sending them upstairs.

11/04-6/05 Skill Med Services INC, - Duties included answering multi line phone, filing
sorting, Making copies, faxing, scheduling classes, keeping up with LNA side of
company, Managing the company database and our website, keeping track of all files,
also did data entry, along with making bank deposits and processing the mail, I also did
follow ups on classes that were running.

10/04-11/04 Pro-Temps ~ I did receptionist work for the different jobs that they got me
and also Did some filling work for them.

9/98-6/01 For 2 years I worked in Shipping and Receiving also at Franklin Hospital. I
Did inventory, ordered supplies did UPS and Fed/Ex. My job was to keep inventory,
Stock supplies, received supplies, data entry, taking calls for orders and delivering them
also processed the mail.

9/98-9/04 Franklin Hospital, 15 Aiken Ave. Franklin NH 03235-1 worked in Medical
Records for 6 years. My job was to file away all patients’ medical records that came in the
hospital Copying, Faxing, Data Entry, Abstracting for Coders.

1992-1998 Super 8 Motel I did housekeeping there along with laundry and front desk.
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CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from
this Contract | this Contract
Wayne Colby Program Director $50,000 3.75% $1,875
Jennifer Putorek Manager $32,500 11.00% $3,575
Mary Brown Assistant Residential $27,040 100% $27,040
Manager
Cindy Hunt Assistant Residential $21,840 100% $21,840
Manager




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Continuum of Care Program
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1  State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address

Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Human Services

129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301

1.3  Contractor Name

Community Partners

1.4  Contractor Address
113 Crosby Road, Suite 1
Dover, NH 03820

1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number

(603) 749-4015 010-042-7927-102-0731 June 30, 2015 $40,527

1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10  State Agency Telephone Number

Eric D. Borrin

(603)271-9558

1.11 Contractor Signature

1.12  Name and Title of Contractor Signatory

Ch ristopher Round v, 04?3 Ident

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of A [T County of _ﬂm(fa'ro(

On

),-t
25' , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the

person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block

1.12.
1.13.1 Slgnatuﬁe of Notary Public ey Justice gf the Peace
‘
[Seal
%
1.13.2 Name and Titie of ] Votary or Justice of the Peace MARTHA J. GREEN
Mardfra TJ. Cr(en, No'/ﬂ"-/ My Commission Expires January 29. 2019

1.14 State Agency Signature ye 1.15 Name and Tltle of State Agency Signatory

. / S Ve V7.5 7.4’” NC g .

/ / w } ey Aexoe., ale. (0' “’"Z‘“Q‘ (o
1.16 Approval ﬁhe NTI Departmyﬁt of Administration, Division of Personnel (if applicable)
By: v Director, On:
1.17 Approval by the Attorney Genexal (Form, Substance and Execution)

c

By: /Q-W o Y y7-1Yy
1.18 Approval by the Govern}ﬁ and Executive Council
By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State™), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor™) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials: / _
Date: 2{ /¢



8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default”):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of] this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: /{L

Date:



certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation™).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers” Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

Page 4 of 4

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24, ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials:
Date:
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SCOPE OF SERVICES

Continuum of Care Program

1.

CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1.

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care Grant.
The State has applied for the Continuum of Care Grant and will continue to perform due
diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no representation that it
will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or
payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the State’s receipt of
federal funds applied for in the Continuum of Care Grant.

2. SERVICES

3.

2.1.

2.2

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, the Contractor
shall provide a permanent housing program that shall serve six (6) homeless individuals
with disabilities.

The goal of this program is to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals to
permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

To be eligible for contract services, individuals must be homeless as defined in HUD
regulations. The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate documentation.

The Contractor shall provide these services according to HUD regulations as outlined in
Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578 Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
Transition to Housing: Continuum of Care Program interim rule, and other written HUD
policies and directives.

Each program patrticipant shall have an employment assessment and employment
goals included in the individual service plan, as appropriate.

PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

3.1.

3.2.

The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report: Within thirty (30) days after the Completion Date,
an Annual Performance Report (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that
summarizes the results of the Project Activities, showing in particular how the
Project Activities have been performed. The Annual Performance Report shall
be in the form required or specified by the State.

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State.

All programs under this contract are required to be licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS).
Programs under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time
required for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through
the following website: hitp://www.nh-hmis.org.
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3.3. Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could
result in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the BHHS.

4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities
and documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably
interfere with contractor performance.

4.3. The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.

4.4, Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of
the contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is
completed and all questions arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

4.5. Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the
BHHS.

5. FINANCIAL

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program agreement value specified in Exhibit B of this agreement
from the HUD Continuum of Care Program, for contract services.

5.1.1. Operating expenses

5.1.1.1. Eligible operating expenses include maintenance and repair of housing,
property taxes and insurance (including property and car), scheduled
payments to reserve for replacement of major systems of the housing
(provided that the payments must be based on the useful life of the
system and expected replacement cost), building security for a structure
where more than fifty percent of the units or area is paid for with grant
funds, utilities (including electricity, gas and water), furniture and
equipment.

5.1.1.2. Ineligible costs include rental assistance and operating costs in the same
project, operating costs of emergency shelter- and supportive service-
only facilities, maintenance and repair of housing where the costs of
maintaining and repairing the housing are included in the lease.

5.1.2. Supportive services

5.1.2.1. Eligible supportive services costs must comply with all HUD regulations
in 24 CFR 578.53. Eligible services are available to those individuals
actively participating in the permanent housing program.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials é ‘ ; ‘(_,
Page 2 of 5 —
Date g r X l 4 S£



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

5.1.2.2. Eligible costs include mental health services, case management
services, salaries of Contractor staff providing supportive services,
reasonable one-time moving costs (truck rental and hiring a moving
company), child-care costs for establishing and operating child care, and
providing child-care vouchers for children from families experiencing
homelessness (including providing meals and snacks and
comprehensive and coordinated developmental activities), education
services, employment assistance and job training skills, housing search
and counseling services, legal services (fees charged by licensed
attorneys and by person(s) under the supervision of licensed attorneys,
for advice and representation in matters that interfere with the homeless
individual or family's ability to obtain and retain housing), outpatient
health services, transportation services, and utility deposits.

5.1.2.3. Ineligible costs include staff training, fundraising, conference attendance,
and court fines incurred by participants.

5.1.3. Rental Assistance

5.1.3.1. Grant funds may be used for rental assistance for homeless individuals
and families. Rental assistance cannot be provided to a program
participant who is already receiving rental assistance, or living in a
housing unit receiving rental assistance or operating assistance through
other federal, State, or local sources.

5.1.3.2. The rental assistance may be short term, up to 3 months of rent; medium
term, for 3-24 months; or long-term, for longer than 24 months of rent
and must be administered in accordance with the policies and
procedures established by the Continuum as set forth in 24 CFR
578.7(a)(9) and 24 CFR 578.51.

5.1.3.3. Long-term rental assistance must be administered by someone other
than the Contractor. The Contractor must have a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU), with a State, unit of general local government, or
a public housing agency.

5.1.3.4. Short or medium term rental assistance provided under the Rapid
ReHousing program component is not subject to requirements in 578.51
(b), and is not required to be administered by a state, unit of local
government, or public housing agency.

5.1.3.5. Grant funds may be used for security deposits in an amount not to
exceed 2 months of rent. An advance payment of the last month's rent
may be provided to the landlord, in addition to the security deposit and
payment of first month’s rent.

5.1.3.6. Rental assistance will only be provided for a unit if the rent is reasonable.
The contractor must determine whether the rent charged for the unit
receiving rental assistance is reasonable in relation to rents being
charged for comparable unassisted units, taking into account the
location, size, type, quality, amenities, facilities, and management and
maintenance of each unit.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit A Contractor Initials é ‘i ﬂ'
Page 3 of 5
Date 3[ 29 2( L



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

CA/DHHS/100213

51.3.7.

5.1.3.8.

5.1.3.9.

5.1.3.10.

5.1.3.11.

5.1.3.12.

5.1.3.13.

5.1.4.1.

The Contractor may use grant funds in an amount not to exceed one
month’s rent to pay for any damage to housing due to the action of a
program participant.

Housing must be in compliance with all State and local housing codes,
licensing requirements, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act,
and any other requirements of the jurisdiction in which the housing is
located regarding the condition of the structure and operation of the
housing or services.

The Contractor must provide one of the following types of rental
assistance: Tenant-based, Project-based, or Sponsor-based rental
assistance as described by HUD in 24 CFR 578.51.

Tenant-based rental assistance is rental assistance in which program
participants choose housing of an appropriate size in which to reside.
When necessary to facilitate the coordination of supportive services,
recipients and sub recipients may require program participants to live in
a specific area for their entire period of participation, or in a specific
structure for the first year and in a specific area for the remainder of their
period of participation. Short and medium term rental assistance
provided under the Rapid ReHousing program component must be
tenant based rental assistance.

Sponsor-based rental assistance is provided through contracts between
the recipient and sponsor organization. A sponsor may be a private,
nonprofit organization, or a community mental health agency established
as a public nonprofit organization. Program participants must reside in
housing owned or leased by the sponsor.

Project-based rental assistance is provided through a contract with the
owner of an existing structure, where the owner agrees to lease the
subsidized units to program participants. Program participants will not
retain rental assistance if they move.

For project-based, sponsor-based, or tenant-based rental assistance,
program participants must enter into a lease agreement for a term of at
least one year, which is terminable for cause. The leases must be
automatically renewable upon expiration for terms that are a minimum of
one month long, except on prior notice by either party.

. Administrative costs.

Administrative costs include: Preparing program budgets, schedules and
amendments, developing systems for assuring compliance with program
requirements, developing interagency agreements and agreements with
sub recipients and contractors to carry out program activities, preparing
reports and other documents related to the program for submission to
HUD, evaluating program results against stated objectives, travel costs
incurred for official business in carrying out the program, administrative
services performed under third party contracts or agreements (including
such services as general legal services, accounting services, and audit
services), and other costs for goods and services required for

Exhibit A Contractor Initials ‘: 6/{'
Page 4 of § .
Date 2 2% 2/ b



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

administration of the program (including such goods and services as
rental or purchase of equipment, insurance, utilities, office supplies, and
rental and maintenance, but not purchase, of office space).

The Contractor shall provide sufficient matching funds, as required by HUD regulations
and policies described in 24 CFR 578.73 (a) (b) (c).

5.2.1. The contractor must match all grant funds except for leasing funds, with no less
than twenty-five percent of funds or in-kind contributions from other sources.

5.2.2. Match requirements are to be documented with each payment request.

The Contractor shall only be reimbursed for those costs designated as eligible and
allowable costs as stated in Section 4.1. The Contractor must have written approval
from the State prior to billing for any other expenses.

The Contractor may charge program participants rent and utilities (heat, hot water);
however, the amount charged may not exceed the maximum amounts specified in HUD
regulations (24 CFR 583.315). Other services such as cable, air conditioning,
telephone, Internet access, cleaning, parking, pool charges, etc. are at the participant's
option.

The contractor shall have any staff charged in full or part to this contract or counted as
match complete weekly or bi-weekly timesheets.
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METHOD AND CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO PAYMENT

Continuum of Care Program

The following financial conditions apply to the scope of services as detailed in Exhibit A —
Continuum of Care Program.

This contract is funded by the New Hampshire General Fund and/or by federal funds made
available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance (CFDA), as follows:

NH General Fund: Not applicable

Federal Funds:

CFDA #: 14.235

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development
Program Title: Continuum of Care Program

Total Amount Continuum of Care Program;

July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2015: not to exceed $40,527.00

Funds allocation under this agreement for Continuum of Care Program;
Operating Cost: $5,250.00

Supportive Services: $34,238.00

Administrative Costs: _$1,039.00

Total program amount: $40,527.00

1. Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in consideration of the satisfactory
completion of the services to be performed under this Agreement, the State agrees to fund
the Contractor for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental assistance and
administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, in an amount not to exceed and for the
time period specified above.

2. REPORTS

As part of the performance of the Project Activities, the Contractor covenants and agrees to
submit the following:

2.1. Audited Financial Report: The Audited Financial Report shall be prepared in
accordance with the regulations that implement OMB Circular A-133. Three (3) copies
of the audited financial report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days of the completion
of said report to the State.

2.2. Where the Contractor is not subject to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, within
ninety (90) days after the Completion or Termination Date, one copy of an audited
financial report shall be submitted to the State. Said audit shall be conducted utilizing
the guidelines set forth in “Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations, Program
Activities, and Functions” by the Comptroller General of the United States.

CA/DHHS/100213 Exhibit B Contractor Initials é é /l
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3. PROJECT COSTS: PAYMENT SCHEDULE; REVIEW BY THE STATE

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

Project Costs: As used in this Agreement, the term “Project Costs” shall mean all
expenses directly or indirectly incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the
Project Activities, as determined by the State to be eligible and allowable for payment in
accordance with Public Law 102-550 as well as allowable cost standards set forth in
OMB Circular A-87 as revised from time to time and with the rules, regulations, and
guidelines established by the State. Nonprofit subcontractors shall meet the
requirements of OMB Circular A-122.

Payment of Project Costs: Subject to the General Provisions of this Agreement and in
consideration of the satisfactory completion of the services to be performed under this
Agreement, the State agrees to fund the Contractor for operations, supportive services,
leasing, rental assistance and administration utilizing funds provided through the U.S.
Department of Housing and Urban Development Title XIV Housing programs under the
Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid Transition to Housing Act (HEARTH Act),
Subtitle A-Housing Assistance (Public Law 102-550) in an amount not to exceed as
specified above. Reimbursement requests for all Project Costs shall be submitted on a
monthly basis and accompanied by an invoice from the Contractor for the amount of
each requested disbursement along with a payment request form as designated by the
State, which shall be completed and signed by the Contractor. The Contractor shall
provide additional financial information if requested by the State to verify expenses.

Review of the State Disallowance of Costs: At any time during the performance of the
Services, and upon receipt of the Annual Performance Report, Termination Report or
Audited Financial Report, the State may review all Project Costs incurred by the
Contractor and all payments made to date. Upon such review the State shall disallow
any items of expenses that are not determined to be allowable or are determined to be
in excess of actual expenditures, and shall, by written notice specifying the disallowed
expenditures, inform the Contractor of any such disallowance. If the State disallows
costs for which payment has not yet been made, it shall refuse to pay such costs. Any
amounts awarded to the Contractor pursuant to this agreement are subject to recapture
pursuant to 24 CFR Subsection 576.55. The funds authorized to be expended under
this Agreement shall be used only for operations, supportive services, leasing, rental
assistance and administration or reimbursement for expenditures for operations,
supportive services, leasing, and rental assistance and administration, provided by the
Contractor for the project period and operating years of the Continuum of Care Program
as approved by HUD and in accordance with the Continuum of Care Program
Regulations, published at 24 CFR Part 578.

4. USE OF GRANT FUNDS

41.

4.2.

The State agrees to provide payment for actual costs, up to the not to exceed amount
for the Continuum of Care Program as specified in this Exhibit, as defined by HUD
under the provisions of P.L.. 102-550 and applicable regulations.

The Contractor may amend the contract budget through line item increases, decreases
or the creation of new line items provided these amendments do not exceed the
contract price. Such amendments shall only be made upon written request to and
written approval from the State.
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4.3. Conformance to OMB Circular A-110: Grant funds are to be used only in accordance
with procedures, requirements, and principles specified in OMB Circular A-110.

5. CONTRACTOR FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

5.1. Fiscal Control: The Contractor shall establish fiscal control and fund accounting
procedures which assure proper disbursement of, and accounting for, grant funds and
any required nonfederal expenditures. This responsibility applies to funds disbursed in
direct operations of the Contractor.

5.2. The Contractor shall maintain a financial management system that complies with
Attachment G of A-102, “Standards of Contractor Financial Management Systems” or
such equivalent system as the State may require. Requests for payment shall be made
according to EXHIBIT B, Section 3.2 of this Agreement.
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SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressly understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
fundors for such service. If at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party fundors, the Department may elect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in
excess of costs;
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect alt such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enroliment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility (including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It is recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.

9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the
Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a recipient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his
attorney or guardian.
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be in a form satisfactory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all originai materials
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
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subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor’s ability to perform the delegated

function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting

responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if

the subcontractor's performance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual

conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance

with those conditions.

When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:

16.1.  Evaluate the prospective subcontractor’s ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

16.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's
performance is not adequate

16.3.  Monitor the subcontractor’'s performance on an ongoing basis

16.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

16.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regutations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide to eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or state laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all reguiations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 4 of 4 Date
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is

replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds. in
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account into the
Account(s) identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the State, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, including but not limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
information to support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 Inthe event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitioned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services in the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

Exhibit C-1 — Revisions to Standard Provisions Contractor Initials é &ﬂ
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Titie V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part 1] of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-8505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5.  Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
identification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;
1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check 0 if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Contractor Name: COWML«N"/Y-/ }Qrﬁl(rs

3l ()4

Date’

ChrisTopher
Title:  President
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title [V-D
*Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title XIX

*Community Services Block Grant under Title Vi

*Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: CNWMQIN'M %r}nérs

?/7/(/"{ M

Dat Name: Chrisfopher Waundy
Title: President
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. if it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances.

n o »ous

5. The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” "suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,” “proposal,” and

“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and

Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the

attached definitions.

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, deciared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (I)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER T!IER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name: Oommuni'/«, @ffnér_(

3/2/ /t vd -
Date / Name: Christopher Koundly
Title: Presidewt
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING
THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts
to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

Contractor Name: C)ommuni*y )Oan‘ners

9/?/( /e /%

Daté Name: Chrystopher Roundy
Title: Lresid ewt
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penaity of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

omencnite, YA
Contractor Name: &mmum/—«, dn’mrs

2h sl //

Date / Name: CNnsfopher Koundy
Title:  Président
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABILITY AND ACCOUNTABILTY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to comply with
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and with the Standards for
Privacy and Security of Individually ldentifiable Health Information, 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 and those
parts of the HITECH Act applicable to business associates. As defined herein, “Business Associate” shall
mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that receive, use or have access to
protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered Entity” shall mean the State of New
Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

Definitions

1. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in Title XXX, Subtitle D. Sec. 13400.

2. "Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Tile 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

3. “Covered Entity” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code of Federal
Regulations.

4. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

5. “Data Aggregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

6. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations” in 45
CFR Section 164.501.

7. "HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act,
TitleXlll, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009.

8. “HIPAA" means the Health Iinsurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 104-191
and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45 CFR
Parts 160, 162 and 164.

9. “Individual’ shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 164.501 and
shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.501(g).

10. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health Information at
45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States Department of Health
and Human Services.

11. "Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 164.501, limited to the information created or received by Business
Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

12. “Required by Law” shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in 45 CFR Section
164.501.

13. “Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or his/her
designee.

14. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected Health
Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

15. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not secured by
a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable, unreasonable, or
indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by a standards developing
organization that is accredited by the American National Standards Institute.

16. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning established under
45 C.F.R. Parts 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the HITECH Act.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials é él(
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Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information

1.

Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health Information (PHI)
except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under Exhibit A of the Agreement.
Further, the Business Associate shall not, and shall ensure that its directors, officers, employees and
agents, do not use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:

2.1.  Forthe proper management and administration of the Business Associate,;

2.2. Asrequired by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or

2.3. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered Entity.

To the extent Business Associate is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a third party,
Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i) reasonable assurances from
the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and used or further disclosed only as required
by law or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such
third party to notify Business Associate, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec.
13402 of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained knowledge of
such breach.

The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to provide services
under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a request for disclosure on the
basis that it is required by law, without first notifying Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an
opportunity to object to the disclosure and to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such
disclosure, the Business Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has
exhausted all remedies.

If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to be bound by
additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall be bound by such additional
restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of such additional restrictions and shall abide by
any additional security safeguards.

Obligations and Activities of Business Associate

1.

Business Associate shall report to the designated Privacy Officer of Covered Entity, in writing, any
use or disclosure of PHI in violation of the Agreement, including any security incident involving
Covered Entity data, in accordance with the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13402.

The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy and Security Rule as set forth in,
the HITECH Act, Subtitle D, Part 1, Sec. 13401 and Sec.13404.

Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books and records
relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or received by the Business
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for purposes of determining Covered Entity’s
compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule.

Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have access to PHI
under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same restrictions and conditions on the use
and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including the duty to return or destroy the PHI as provided
under Section (3)b and (3)k herein. The Covered Entity shall be considered a direct third party
beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate agreements with Contractor's intended business
associates, who will be receiving PHI pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and
indemnification from such business associates who shall be governed by standard provision #13 of
this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of protected health information.

Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all records, books, agreements,
policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes
of enabling Covered Entity to determine Business Associate’s compliance with the terms of the
Agreement.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit |

6. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity, Business Associate
shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the Covered Entity, or as directed by
Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

7. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an amendment of
PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record Set, the Business Associate
shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for amendment and incorporate any such
amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

8. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to such
disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an individual for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

9. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a request for an
accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available to Covered Entity such
information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations to provide an accounting of
disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.528.

10. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI directly from the
Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2) business days forward such request
to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the responsibility of responding to forwarded requests.
However, if forwarding the individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the
Business Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate shall
instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify Covered Entity of such
response as soon as practicable.

11. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the Business
Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate in connection with the Agreement, and shall not retain any copies
or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or destruction is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHi has
been otherwise agreed to in the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the
protections of the Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business Associate maintains
such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the Business Associate destroy any or
all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

Obligations of Covered Entity

1. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its Notice of Privacy
Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section 164.520, to the extent that such
change or limitation may affect Business Associate’'s use or disclosure of PHI.

2. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of
permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or disclosed by
Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section 164.506 or 45 CFR Section
164.508.

3. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or disclosure of
PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522, to the extent that such
restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.

Termination for Cause

In addition to standard provision #10 of this Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the
Agreement upon Covered Entity’'s knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business
Associate Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately terminate
the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the alleged breach within a
timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity determines that neither termination nor cure is
feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the Secretary.

Exhibit | — Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act Contractor Initials 4' é tE
Business Associate Agreement
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

Miscellaneous

1.

Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein, shall have
the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, and the HITECH Act as amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, to a Section in
the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as amended.

Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is necessary to
amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the
changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule, and applicable federal and
state law.

Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights with respect
to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved to permit
Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule and the HITECH Act.
Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any person(s) or
circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or conditions which can be
given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the terms and conditions of this Exhibit |
are declared severable.

Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or destruction of
PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section 3 k, the defense and indemnification
provisions of section 3 d and standard contract provision #13, shall survive the termination of the
Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit 1.

Contractor Name: Cjommuniﬁ’ ﬁzr'fncrs

%&¢f /524fi;%£ffff

Date Name: Chri $topher Rou nd

Title: Precideuct
State Agency Name:

MH D HHS

Date ' / Name:

CU/DHHS/110713 Page 4 of 4 Date g 2

Title:

/¢ //f/ L/7////WSW ey
o
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications resutt in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if:
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

SOPNOO RN =

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Contractor Name: COmmun?f-q ‘lg,r’fher_s

Zheleof — =
Date” Name: (J n‘sibpher K’oundy
Title:  Fresi/de wt

Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor [nitials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 2 //
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: /'7"9 '7‘06&,7 i

2. Inyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES
if the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
if the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

if the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Exhibit J — Certification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance 3
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State of Nefo Hampshire
Bepartment of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M, Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby
certify that Community Partners of Strafford County Foundation is a New Hampshire
nonprofit corporation formed April 27, 2005. 1 further certify that it is in good standing
as far as this office is concerned, having filed the return(s) and paid the fees required by

law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREQF, 1 hereto
set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 5 day of June A.D, 2013

a7 Bkl

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE
Ahr\ LMANI gec,rf Aoy , do hereby certify that:

(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. | am a duly elected Officer of Gj)mmun:“’\l *pa rther<
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

—
the Agency duly held on 5 25 / 4
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the C (4 1% (49}
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

theaitjay of Mam_ 20_]_%

(Date Contract Signed)

4. S | is the duly elected pfé’f id ent
(Name'of Contract Signatory {Title of Contract Signatory)
of the Agency.

Céwf/fu Pg

(Signature of the Elected,{flcer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of M&pjﬂfr&

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this 0’15 day of }/’drch 20 ILI

(Name of Elected Office? of the Agency) Q\
gy

(Notary Pybljc/Justice of the Peace)

(NOTARY SEAL)

Commission Expires: ’/2411/ 9

NH DHHS, Office of Business Operations
Bureau of Provider Relationship Management
Certificate of Vote Without Seal

July 1, 2005



ACORD.

Client#: 950869

BEHAVHEA7

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
04/01/2014

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER
USI Insurance Services LLC

PO

Box 406

Portland, ME 04112-0406

CONTACT
NAME:

NG, Ext): 207-239-3500

[TA% oy 207-775-0339

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INsurer A : Philadelphia Indemnity Insuranc 18058
INSURED insurer e : NH Employers Insurance Company 13083
Community Partners ERRERLC
113 Crosby Road Suite 1 o
Dover, NH 03820 )
INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS 1S TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

iy TYPE OF INSURANCE INSR WVD | POLICY NUMBER (lmllblg)’v%) (53/'38%) LIMITS
A | GENERAL LIABILITY PHPK1040451 07/01/2013[07/01/2014 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY DA LR ey | $100,000
CLAIMS-MADE [)g OCCUR MED EXP (Any one person) | $10,000
PERSONAL & ADV INJURY | $1,000,000
GENERAL AGGREGATE $3,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $3,000,000
POLICY l_‘ RO m Loc $
A | AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY PHPK1040451 07/01/2013|07/01/2014 Z3MENED SINCLELMIT 11,000,000
X ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | $
: ALL OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) | $
| X| HiIReD AUTOS AT WNED ‘ PROPERTY DAVAGE s
i s
|| UMBRELLALIAB H OCCUR EACH OCCURRENGE $
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $
DED | ! RETENTION § : $
B | WORKERS COMPENSATION . ECC60040000672013A  07/01/2013|07/01/2014 |76 {iwirs | 28"
B EERREIONEATEREEC Ve cL cicnaccioon {500,000
(Mandatory in NH) E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| $500,000
If yes, describe under
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - PoLicY umiT | $500,000
A |Professional PHPK1040451 07/01/201307/01/2014 Per Claim: $1,000,000
Liability Aggregate: $3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, if more space is required)
This Certificate of Insurance is issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the

holder and does not amend, extend or alter the coverage afforded by policies designated on the Certificate.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NH Dept. of Health & Human

Services

129 Pleasant St., Brown Building

Concord, NH 03301

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

E. otl Do

ACORD 25 (2010/05) 1

of 1
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113 Crosby Road
Suite 1

Dover, NH 03820
(603) 516-9300
Fax: (603) 743-3244

50 Chestnut Street
Dover, NH 03820
(603) 516-9300
Fax: (603) 516-7370

25 Old Dover Road
Rochester, NH 03867
(603) 516-9300

Fax: (603) 3359278

A United Way
Partner Agency

Umted
W ay

adtand Wy
-lh.e—t-l--

Community Partners
Mission Statement

Our mission is to promote respect, wellness, full inclusion,
and empowerment of individuals and their families who
experience mental illness, emotional distress,
developmental disability, chronic health needs,
or acquired brain disorder.

By identifying and creating opportunities for people, in
close collaboration with a network of local agencies, we will
promote independence and interdependence and help the

people we serve to realize their maximum potential.
We are committed to educate the community at large about
our mission

The agency will provide staff with opportunities
for professzonal growth so they may contribute to the overall
achievement of the agency’s mission.

- Revised Jan/2002

Reaffirmed Sept.201 1

Community Partners
Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc.
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BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & L - /ELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STR. FORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A

10.

COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

In order for the Behavioral Health Services division of the Organization to receive this support, it
must be formally approved by the State of New Hampshire, Bureau of Behavioral Health, as the
community mental health provider for Strafford County in New Hampshire. This designation is
received by the Organization every five years. The current designation expired August 15, 2011.
On August 14, 2012, the Organization received reapproval of its designation to extend its
designation from September 1, 2011 to September 1, 2016.

Retirement Plan

The Organization maintains a tax shelter annuity plan that is offered to all eligible employees. The
plan includes an employer contribution equal to 3% of each eligible employee's salary. Total costs
incurred for the plan during the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 were $195,278 and
$219,813, respectively. The total expense for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 for the
Developmental Services division was $90,553 and $109,754, respectively, and for the Behavioral
Health Services division was $104,725 and $110,059, respectively.

Subsequent Events

For purposes of the preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, management has considered transactions or events
occurring through November 7, 2012, which is the date that the consolidated financial statements

were available to be issued.

-14 -



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & D=VELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRi-FORD COUNTY, INC. D/IB/IA

COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

7. Commitments and Contingencies
Operating Leases
The Organization leases various office facilities and equipment under operating lease agreements.
Expiration dates range from September 2012 through March 2018. Total rent expense charged to
operations was $222,689 in 2012 and $224,895 in 2011.
Minimum operating lease payments for subsequent years éending after June 30, 2012 are as
follows:
Total
2013 , $ 176,872
2014 163,053
2015 163,195
2016 166,920
2017 » 170,757
Thereafter 142 341
_ $ 983,138
8. Concentrations

For the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, approximately 88% of the support and revenue of
the Organization was derived from Medicaid. The future existence of the Organization is
dependent upon continued support from Medicaid.

The accounts receivable due from Medicaid was:

2012 2011
Developmental Services $ 1,114,425 $§ 518,544
Behavioral Health Services 616,823 395,309

$_1.731.248 $__ 913,853

In order for the Developmental Services division of the Organization to receive this support, it must
be formally approved by the State of New Hampshire, Bureau of Developmental Service, as the
provider of services for developmentally disabled individuals for Strafford County in New
Hampshire. This designation is received by the Organization every five years. The current
designation expires September 30, 2013.

-13-



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & L. .LELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STR... FORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

2012 2011
Total Developmental Services (brought forward) $ 452,057 $ 524,852

Behavioral Health Services
Note payable to a bank, modified on March 23, 2011. At the time
of refinancing, the interest rate changed from 5.07% to
4.15%. Monthly principal and interest installments due
changed from $2,662 to $2,464, through April 2016 with one
-final payment of all unpaid principal and interest due at
maturity; collateralized by certain real estate and an
assignment of certain leases and rents. The note is a
participating loan with New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority. 309,850 325,971

$__761,907 $__ 850,823

The scheduled maturities of long term debt are as follows:

2013 $ 48,000
2014 40,000
2015 42,000
2016 390,000
2017 ~ 17,000

Thereafter 224,907

$__761.907

(e

Cash paid for interest approximates interest expense for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011,
respectively.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets

At June 30, 2012 and 2011, temporarily restricted net assets were $96,518 and $82,903,
respectively. The Organization restricted assets consist of vehicles contributed to the Organization
from the State of New Hampshire under grant programs. These contributed vehicles are to be
used for the transportation of the Organization's clients.

-12-



5.

BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & bEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRArFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/IA
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Line of Credit

The Organization has a revolving line of credit agreement with a bank with an available balance to
draw of $700,000 and $1,200,000 for the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The
line requires monthly interest payments on the unpaid principal balance at the rate of 1% over the
bank's stated index, which was 4.25% during the years ended June 30, 2012 and 2011. The line of
credit is collateralized by a security interest in all business assets. The Organization is required to
annually observe thirty consecutive days without an outstanding balance. At June 30, 2012 and
2011, there was no outstanding balance on the line. Subsequent to June 30, 2012, the line of
credit agreement was modified to increase the available balance to $1,500,000 through December

31, 2012.

Notes Payable

Notes payable consisted of the following:

Developmental Services
Note payable to a bank, modified on March 23, 2011. At the time
of refinancing, the interest rate changed from 5.07% to

-4.15%. - Monthly. -principal--and--interest--installments —due
changed from $1,189 to $1,117, through April 2016 with one
final payment of all unpaid principal and interest due at
maturity; collateralized by certain real estate. The note is a
participating loan with New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority.

Note payable to a bank, modified on March 23, 2011. At the time
of refinancing, the interest rate changed from 5.07% to
4.55%. Monthly principal and interest installments due
changed from $2,414 to $2,326, through July 2017 with one
payment of all unpaid principal and interest due at maturity;
collateralized by certain real estate. The note is a
participating loan with New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority.

Note payable to a bank, modified on March 23, 2011. At the time
of refinancing, the interest rate changed from 5.07% to
4.55%. Monthly principal and interest installments due
changed from $4,759- to $4,468, through July 2012;
collateralized by certain equipment. The note is a
participating loan with New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority.

Total Developmental Services (carried forward)

2012 2011
$ 140,461 147,754
302,761 316,348
8,835 60,750

$__ 452,057 $__ 524,852

<11 -



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & L /ELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STR, .. FORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the consolidated statements of activities and functional revenue and expenses.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services
benefited.

Restricted Cash

The Organization is currently serving as a pass-through entity for the Council for Children and
Adolescents with Chronic Health Conditions Loan Guaranty Program. This program is operated
and administered by a New Hampshire bank. Accordingly, as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the
Organization held cash totaling $88,596 and $88,320, respectively, which was restricted for this
program. A corresponding amount has been recorded as a liability.

Additionally, the Organization is administering the Council for Children and Adolescents with
Chronic Health Conditions Program. The total cash restricted for this program as of June 30, 2012
and 2011 was $67,923 and $66,843, respectively. A corresponding amount has been recorded as
a liability and is classified within refundable advances.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following:

2012 2011
- Land and buildings $ 1,859,893 % 1,859,893
Building improvements 1,524,678 1,497,632
Vehicles ' 824,356 917,573
Equipment and furniture 1,945,032 1.874.756
6,153,959 6,149,854

Less accumulated depreciation

3,922,862 _ 3,823.526

$__2231,097 $__2,326.328

-10-



BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & ISE\)ELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STR~.-FORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity date of less than
three months to be cash equivalents. The cash equivalents represent repurchase agreements as
of June 30, 2012 and 2011.

The Organization maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed
federally insured limits. It has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes
it is not exposed to any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from balances
outstanding at year-end. Management provides for probable uncollectible accounts after
considering each category of receivable individually, and estimates an allowance according to the
nature of the receivable. Allowances are estimated from historical performance and projected
trends. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection efforts
are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to trade accounts
receivable. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, allowances were recorded in the amount of $245,825
and $157,587, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost, while donations of property and equipment are
recorded as support at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. Expenditures for repairs
and maintenance are charged against operations. Renewals and betterments which materially
extend the life of the assets are capitalized. Assets donated with explicit restrictions regarding their
~ use and contribtitiohs of cash that must be used to acquire property and equipment are reported as
restricted contributions. Absent donor stipulations regarding how long those donated assets must
be maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or
acquired assets are placed in service. The Organization reclassifies temporarily restricted net
assets to unrestricted net assets at that time. Depreciation is provided for using the straight-line
method in amounts designed to amortize the costs of the assets over their estimated lives as
follows:

Buildings and improvements 15-39 years
Equipment and furniture 3-7 years
Vehicles 5 years

Refundable Advances

The Organization's refundable advances consist of funds received in advance for services to be
performed at a later date, amounts due to Medicaid and estimated Medicaid recoupment
settlement reserves for Medicaid eligibility audits, and certain pass through funds (Note 2).




BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & L /ELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STR, | fORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains, and losses are classified as follows based on
existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions:

Unrestricted net assets - Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or
will be met by actions of the Organization and/or the passage of time. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
consolidated statement of activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently restricted net assets - Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations that they be
maintained permanently by the Organization. As of June 30, 2012 and 2011, the Organization had

no permanently restricted net assets.

Contributions

Contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by
the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or restricted by the donor for
specific purpose are reported as increases in temporarily or permanently restricted net assets,
depending on the nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, temporarily restricted net
assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement of activities as net
assets released from restrictions. The Organization records donor-restricted contributions whose
restrictions are met in the same reporting period as unrestricted support in the year of the gift.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the U.S. Internal
Revenue Code to operate as a not-for-profit organization.

Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC) Topic 740,
Income Taxes, establishes financial accounting and disclosure requirements for recognition and
measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken. Management has reviewed the tax
provisions for the Organization under FASB ASC Topic 740 and determined it did not have a -
material impact on the Organization's consolidated financial statements.




BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & tiELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STRArFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2012 and 2011

Nature of Activities

Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County, inc. d/b/a Community Partners (the
Organization) is a New Hampshire nonprofit corporation providing a wide range of community based
services (see consolidated statement of functional revenue and expenses for various programs offered)
for individuals, and their families, with developmental disabilities and/or mental iliness. The
Organization also supports families with children who have chronic health needs. The Organization is
currently operating as two divisions: Developmental Services and Behavioral Health Services.

The Organization is the sole shareholder of Lighthouse Management Services, Inc. which was
organized to perform accounting and management functions for other not-for-profit entities.

The Organization is the sole beneficiary of Community Partners Foundation (the Foundation) which
was established exclusively for the benefit and support of the Organization. To that end, the Foundation
receives and accepts gifts and funds.

The Foundation received and disbursed the following funds for years ended June 30:

2012 2011
Funds received $ 22957 $ 33,159
Funds disbursed ' v 38,819 36,751

$__(15.862) $___(3502)

The Foundation has received and disbursed the following funds since its inception in 2007:

Funds received | $ 200,991
Funds disbursed 134,448

66,543

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Behavioral Health & Developmental
Services of Strafford County, Inc. d/b/a Community Partners, Lighthouse Management Services,
Inc., and Community Partners Foundation. All material intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated in consolidation. Collectively the entities are referred to as "the Organization”

throughout these notes.




BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & L. .ELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STR....FORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities

Depreciation
Change in allowance for doubtful accounts
Contribution revenue for capital purchases
Gain on sale of assets
Decrease (increase) in

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, trade

Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses
Increase (decrease) in

Accounts payable, trade

Accrued expenses

Refundable advances

Loan fund

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of equipment
Proceeds from sale of equipment

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Principal payments on long-term borrowings

Net cash used by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and casﬁ equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Supplemental disclosures
Contribution of vehicles received under grant programs

2012 2011
$ 100,950 $ 101,337
317,792 316,127
88,238 (49,971)
(42,557) (88,488)
(6,075) -
(1,356) 863
(920,181) 186,597
(4,484) 7.040
41,058 (371,414)
180,033 38,629
147,228 (351,084)
152,944 (23,026)
276 365
53,866 (233,925)
(180,004)  (104,762)
6,075 | -
(173.929) __(104.762)
(88,916) (85.192)
(88,916) (85.192)
(208,979)  (423,879)
2315290  2.739.169
$_2106,311 $_2,315.200
$ 42557 $ 88488

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & D:VELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STR/-\rFORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Activities

Years Ended June 30, 2012 and 2011

' 2012 2011
Changes in unrestricted net assets
PUblIC support and revenue
Medicaid revenue $ 21,849,714 $ 21,497,967
Medicare revenue 152,534 175,729
Client resources 1,391,820 1,466,675
Contract revenue 646,231 572,448
Grant income 387,563 315,057
Interest income 1,096 1,896
Other program revenue 59,374 33,381
Public support 59,740 64,896
Other revenue 174,395 218,703
Total public support and revenue 24,722,467 24,346,752
Net assets released from restrictions 33,020 22,064
Total public support, revenue, and reclassifications 24,755,487 24,368,816
Expenses
Program services
Case management 1,887,441 1,978,706
Day programs and community support 6,509,680 6,234,372
Early support services and youth and family 3,408,030 3,457,224
Family support 607,518 644,701
Residential services T 5,484,782 5,477,058
Combined residential, day and consolidated services 3,940,153 3,431,267
- Medical services 96,718 ~ 93,308
Adult services 299,098 384,890
Emergency services 592,081 611,855
Other 443,200 477,939
Total program expenses 23,268,701 22,791,320
Supporting services
General management 1,399,452 1,546,825
Total expenses 24,668,153 24,338,145
Total change in unrestricted net assets 87,334 30,671
Changes in temporarily restricted net assets
Grant income 42,557 88,488
United Way allocation 4,079 4,242
Net assets released from restrictions (33,020) (22.064)
Total change in temporarily restricted net assets 13.616 70.666
Total change in net assets 100,950 101,337
Net assets, beginning of year 3,592,661 3,491,324
Net assets, end of year $ 3693611 $ 3592661

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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BEHAVIORAL HEALTH & L /JELOPMENTAL SERVICES OF STR-.. FORD COUNTY, INC. D/B/A
COMMUNITY PARTNERS AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

June 30, 2012 and 2011

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted cash

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
Grants receivable

Prepaid expenses

Property and equipment, net

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Refundable advances
Loan fund
Notes payable

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Net assets

Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted

Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

2012 2011
$ 2,106,311 $ 2,315,290
156,519 165,163
2,087,591 1,255,648
20,289 15,805
411,448 452,506
2,231,097 2,326,328
$_7,013,255 $_6.520.740
$ 589,135 $ 409,102
883,257 736,029
996,749 843,805
88,596 88,320
761,907 850,823
3,319,644 2,928,079
3,697,093 3,509,758
96,518 82,903
3,693,611 3,592,661
$_7,013,.255 $_6,520,740

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

-2-



B BerryDunn;

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Directors
Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc. d/b/a Community Partners and
Subsidiaries

We have audited the consolidated statements of financial position of Behavioral Health &
Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc. d/b/a Community Partners and Subsidiaries (the
Organization) as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of activities,
functional revenue and expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended. These consolidated
financial statements are the responsibility of the Organization's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates

—made by-management;-as well-as-evaluating-the overall-financial-statement-presentation.--We-believe - -

that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of
Strafford County, Inc. d/b/a Community Partners and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 2012 and 2011, and
the consolidated changes in their net assets and their consolidated cash flows for the years then ended
in conformlty with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole. The information included in the accompanying consolidating schedules is
presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not-a required part of the basic consolidated
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic consolidated
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the audit procedures applied in the audits
of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic consolidated financial statements or the basic consolidated financial statements themselves,
and other procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole.

&WJ, Lonn Medel_f Prrker

Manchester, New Hampshire
November 7, 2012

Bangor, ME e Portland, ME ¢ Manchester, NH
www.berrydunn.com
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BRIAN J. COLLINS

Summary:

A seasoned Executive Director with broad experience in managing complex nonprofit
organizations; manages with a hands-on, approachable style and a strong, mission-driven
value system.

Experience:

1995 - Present Executive Director
Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford County, Inc.,
D/B/A Community Partners of Strafford County, Dover, NH

CEO of a designated regional Area Agency for Developmental Disabilities and
Community Mental Health Center serving over 3200 people with 350 staff and $25
million budget; implemented needed programmatic changes stemming from long-term
financial losses, including negative fund balances; vastly improved quality outcomes after
assuming the position in 1995; report to a 15 member Board of Directors.

e Turned around agency’s $324K negative total net assets upon arrival to $3.6 million
positive total net assets today.

¢ Successfully implemented corrective administrative measures, resulting in removal of
conditions imposed by the State of NH as a result of the impeding bankruptcy coupled
with unsatisfactory programming through FY95.

e Provided 150 new services to waitlist consumers during the first 4 years with no
additional resources.

e Merged a bankrupt mental health center into organization in 2001, creating one of
only two organizational models in New Hampshire.

e Expanded agency mission, including becoming a Partners in Health site serving
children with chronic illness and their families, running State-wide loan program for
families with chronically ill members and expanded business office operations
through contractual means with other not for profit organizations.

o Statewide Leadership role as a founder of both the Community Support Network Inc.,
a trade organization for the Area Agency system, and the NH Community Behavioral
Health Association, a trade organization for the mental health system.

e Regional leader in a variety of social service organizations and associations that
advance human service causes including chronic illness, elder services, supporting
families of children with chronic illness, mental health court, sexual assault victims,
employment for people with disabilities and work with schools and pre-schools.

Area Agency responsibilities include Early Supports and Services for children birth-three,
Family Support Services for all families of children with disabilities (including respite,

Brian Collins
Page 2



parent to parent, transition supports, benefits application assistance, support groups,
clinical education), Adult Services including Service Coordination, employment and day
habilitation, residential, community and in-home supports, contract administration of
provider organizations, consumer directed programs.

Community Mental Health Centers serve individuals with severe and persistent mental
illness including psychiatry, case management, community functional supports, therapy,
and medication management. For children and families this includes an at risk category,
but the same types of intervention as for adults, providing 24 hour/7 day emergency
services, working in local hospitals assessing at risk to the individual or the community.

1989 - 1995 Executive Director
The Plus Company, Nashua, NH

Chief Executive Officer of a non-profit human service agency serving over 150 people
with disabilities in New Hampshire and Massachusetts. Agency provides residential,
vocational, and medical supports in over 50 locations. Agency employs 125 staff with a
total budget of $4.5 million. Report to a 15 member Board of Directors.

e Eliminated debt service after Agency had lost $500,000 over a prior five-year period.
Agency’s surplus exceeded $600,000 over five year tenure.

¢ Increased operational budget over $1 million. Contract with 25 funding streams,
which include three states, numerous non-profit agencies, school systems, and private
companies.

e Eliminated the need for a sheltered workshop by developing community jobs and
individualized day options for over 75 consumers. Negotiated the sale of the
sheltered workshop building and relocated the agency headquarters. The move retired
all debt service.

e Downsized all group home populations by developing individualized and small group
options. Grew the number of consumers living in small group settings from 45 to 70
people during a five-year period.

¢ Increased fund raising and public relation, including a high profile annual breakfast
with over 400 people in attendance.

1985 - 1989 Program Planning and Review Specialist
New Hampshire DMHDS, Concord, NH

Responsible for managing $13 million of State and Federal funds, covering one-quarter of
the service system; areas of responsibilities include case management, housing,

vocational programming, respite care, early childhood intervention and family support
services. Reported to the Assistant Director of Developmental Services.

Brian Collins
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e Monitor contract compliance to ensure cost effective service delivery system. Oversee
implementation of Supported Employment Initiative to establish program models,
funding stream, staff re-education and training, and business and industry liaisons.

e Analyze budgets to determine maximum revenue sources and maintain controls over
expenditures.

e Ensure that the Board of Directors policies and staff procedures enhance community
presence of people with severe disabilities.

e Liaison for regional area agencies and State agencies to Division of Vocational
Rehabilitation.

e Ensure compliance with $2 million federal grant, to fund a five-year plan to create
employment opportunities.

e Member of Governor’s Task Force on Employment.

1982 - 1985 Quality Assurance Administrator,
Training Coordinator, New Hampshire DMHDS

Quality: Responsible for quality assurance function statewide for Community Service
Delivery System. Led seven-person team in annual reviews of each regional area agency.
Reported to the Director of Quality Assurance.

Training: Responsible for the coordination of statewide and regional training for
Community Service Deliver System; designed Training Needs Inventory using regional
priorities to establish training needs; procured funding to provide consultants for specific
regional training and technical assistance; originated special projects, including training
annual, audio visual training packages and leisure skills handbook.

Education:

Masters in Public Administration, University of New Hampshire
BA, Communications, Boston College Evening School

Advisory Boards:

Advisory Board, University of New Hampshire Institute on Disability (UAP)

University of Hartford Rehabilitation Training Program

Virginia Commonwealth University Rehabilitation Research and Training Center.

New Hampshire Governor’s Appointment to Inter-Agency Coordinating Council.
Overseeing services to children with disabilities from birth to age three.

HHS Commissioner Stephen’s Advisory Council focused on increasing employment for
people with disabilities

Brian Collins
Page 4



Memberships:

The Association for Persons with Severe Handicaps (TASH)
American Association on Mental Retardation (AAMR)
National Rehabilitation Association (NRA)

New Hampshire Rehabilitation Association (NHRA)
American Network of Community Options and Resources



Kathleen Stocker

Accomplishments
* Installation of T-1 lines for voice and data telecommunications systems reducing phone costs by 35%
Implementation of direct deposit of payroll
Directed conversion of computer system to PC network
Streamlined accounting departments of 3 divisions saving overhead of $200 thousand per year
Initiated the development of MIS group to improve information flow
Designed meaningful cash flow and other financial reporting
Converted to a new MIS system resulting in more timely, meaningful financial information
Accelerated accounts receivable collection period from 50 days to 40 days
Converted payroll to bi-weekly to improve cash flow by $150 thousand
Collapsed insurance package for savings of $400 thousand per year
Combined insurance programs for savings of $50 thousand per year
Presented public offering memorandum to SEC committee
Implemented accounts receivable factoring facility of $3.5 million
Raised new capital to refinance four nursing homes for $17.9 million
Effort to identify reimbursable costs resulted in an average Medicaid rate increase of 11%
Successful in negotiations with state and federal tax agencies
Directed successful audits with CPA firms IRS, Medicaid agents

EEE B I R I

Business Experience

2000 — Present Community Partners, d/b/a of Behavioral Health & Developmental Services of Strafford
County, Inc., Dover, New Hampshire

Chief Financial Officer 2001 — Present
Controller 2000 - 2001

Responsible for directing the overall financial and administrative management of this $18+ million agency,
including Human Resources, Facilities, and IT. Also, an additional $3 million between Community Partners and
three other agencies in the Dover area to provide overall financial and IT management.

1993 - 2000 Renaissance Greeting Card, Inc., Sanford, Maine
Controller for a privately held subsidiary of FTD. Renaissance designs, manufactures, and distributes products for
the greeting card industry. The nation wide retailer has annual revenues of $10 million. Report directly to
Executive Vice President.

*  Develop a system of financial reporting to advise on performance and to facilitate planning.

*  Evaluate and recommend improvements for MIS system and Operation Process.

*  Establish training and education to strengthen understanding of accounting and systems issues.

*  Direct and coordinate accounting functions required to maintain data integrity and all books of account.
*

Manage the Credit functions to ensure timely processing of orders and the acceleration of collection’s
efforts.

Implement and improve company wide budget process with major focus on sales and inventory.

Provide support and focus to teams in developing Marketing Strategy, improving Profitability, and
strengthening overall company Structure initiatives.

* *

1990 — 1993 Schirm Associates, Waltham, Massachusetts

Controller of a privately held collective that provides rehabilitation and education services to survivors of head
trauma. The fifteen proprietorships offer seven programs in a continuum of care approach to head injury. Located
in the New England and Mid Atlantic States with revenues of $45 million. Managed nineteen accounting, finance,
tax, risk management, and administrative professionals. Reported directly to owner.

Schirm Associates continued

*  Coordinated all the planning, development, and implementation of the necessary accounting functions
required to close, monitor, and analyze the books of account.



Reviewed and managed all risk management functions.

Planned and organized all fiscal year end requirements including audits, reporting, and taxes.

Supported and led team in preparation of information for presentation to the institutional lending markets.
Key member of task force to develop public offering memorandum.

* K ¥ ¥ ¥

Assisted work-out group in reorganization of companies

1988 — 1990 Clipper Home Affiliated, Durham, New Hampshire

Controller of a privately held company that develops, owns, and operates retirement communities. Clipper Home
Affiliates is one of the largest providers of long-term care services in the state of New Hampshire. The companies
are comprised of eight operating corporations, eight related partnerships and an affiliated management company
with total assets of approximately $35 million. Supervised twelve accounting and administrative professionals.
Reported to the Chief Financial Officer.

*  Performed all the necessary accounting functions to close and monitor the books of account, general ledger,
and asset records. Prepared and revised financial statements.

Managed the accountability of construction records for new facilities.

Implemented a reporting system to review performance and facilitate planning

Developed operational budgets and pricing.

Supported a task force in developing a presentation to the institutional lending market.
Worked with other finance and MIS professionals to evaluate the existing computer system.

Prepared Cost filings for the State to determine the reimbursement rate for the Medicaid recipients.
Maintained the company’s insurance and risk management programs. Planned, coordinated, and
administered the year end audits by State and Federal agencies. Calculated cash requirements and
developed cash flow reporting. Administered all outstanding debt. Solicited and evaluated proposals for a
centralized cash management system.

* Xk K K ¥ ¥

1977 — 1988 Spaulding Composites, Rochester, New Hampshire
Spaulding Composites, Inc. is a privately held manufacturer of specialty insulating materials and fabricated
component for electronics, housing and automotive industries with gross sales of approximately $100 million.

Controller of three of eight Spaulding Divisions 1983 — 1988. Supervised six accounting professionals. Reported to
the Vice President of Operations and Vice President of Finance.

*  Planned, managed, and performed all the necessary accounting functions including closing and analyzing
the books of account, reconciliation of inter-company transactions, maintenance of the general ledger
monthly reporting, financial statement preparation and analysis.

Monitored standard cost system geared toward cost containment and control.

Established and administered policies and procedures.

Prepared revenues and cost evaluation surveys of the manufacturing processes for Federal agencies.
Prepared and monitored budgets with annual sales of $50 million.

Trained staff in the conversion of a manual system to a computerized accounting and reporting system.

* ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥

Assistant Controller 1977-1982 Supervised staff of five accounting professionals and MIS staff of three.

*  Supervised all the day to day accounting functions including accounts receivable, accounts payable, payroll
and standard costing of $3 million inventory.

*  Member of corporate wide task force to reduce accounts receivable and improve collections.
Planned, analyzed and reported on special projects geared toward improvement of bottom line profits.

*  Monitored the ongoing conversion of accounting integrity of a newly implemented decentralized
accounting and reporting system.

*

*  Designed and implemented a system to fully automate a labor cost control method.

Education
M.B.A., Management, 1980, New Hampshire College
B.S., Accounting, 1977, New Hampshire College



Christopher D. Kozak

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

High-performance executive providing leadership, innovation and direction to support infrastructure
change and development to maximize profitability. Proven ability to develop and implement strategic
approaches and methodologies to create a highly effective organization that operates at or below
budgetary requirements. Excel in understanding the insurance industry and the challenges faced by
insurers and providers. Skilled in identifying and capitalizing on technology to solve business problems.
Demonstrate broad-based strengths and accomplishments in:

o Leadership & Accountability e MCO Contracting

o P &L Responsibility ¢ Rate Negotiation

s Strategic Planning e Process and Quality Improvement

e Staff Development and Team Building s Corporate Presentations & Marketing

Community Partners Dover, NH October 2010 - Present

A State designated Community Mental Health Program providing services to individuals

Chief Operating Officer (4/12 — present)

Director of Quality Improvement (10/10 - 4/12)
Senior member of the management team with responsibility for oversight of the Behavioral Health
Services Division.

Accomplishments

s Successfully navigated the organization through the State’s re-designation process. Preliminary
feedback indicated that the State will award the organization with another full 5-year designation
as a community mental health program.

» Developed and implemented several new reports, forms and other management tools that created
efficiencies in daily paper work as well as providing mangers with a dashboard-like view of data
about their specific staff/program simply by opening a Microsoft Excel file.

» Engaged in a major change management process that has challenged veteran staff to rethink and
analyze nearly every facet of their program operation.

Dynamic Solutions NE, LL.C Portsmouth, NH September 2008 — Present

Independent consulting company specializing in revenue enhancement strategies, operational automation and small application
development for behavioral health practices and small health plans.

Consultant
Founded Dynamic Solutions NE, LLC after spending nearly two decades in leadership positions in the

insurance, case management and technology fields.
Accomplishments
s Developed proposal for a custom web-based outcome measurement application to be used by 14
psychiatric treatment centers spanning six states.
e Provided expert witness consultation in a case related to software pirating.
e Provide ad hoc consultation to information technology firms relative to healthcare informatics.

Casenet Inc. Bedford, MA August 2006 — July 2008
A startup software company offering a platform care management solution for commercial insurance carriers as well as Medicaid /
Medicare care management programs.
Vice President of Product Management
Key member of the management team with responsibility for developing client specific solutions as
well as creating the vision driving overall product direction.
Accomplishments
¢ Visionary behind the base business solution platform for the care management marketplace.
« Developed messaging that was instrumental in landing first commercial payer accounts (>$9
million).
s Member of the Senior Management Team that successfully secured $7.5 million of B-round




Christopher D. Kozak Page 2

financing.

Landmark Solutions, LLC (A.K.A. BHN) Concord, NH September 1998 — September 2006

A regional managed behavioral healthcare company, national employee assistance program, and IT consulting group.

Vice President of Managed Care Services (7/03 — 8/06)
Director of Behavioral Health Services (8/98 — 7/03)
Complete responsibility for the managed care product including $3.5 million operating budget, $18
million clinical capitation, strategic planning, vision, provider contracting, and oversight of five
departments. Worked closely with IT to develop and implement innovative and efficient processes
and systems to support process improvement, operational compliance, reporting and analysis, and
workflow integration.
Accomplishments
¢ Re-contracted provider network to simplify contracts and maximize flexibility in bringing on new
business lines.
¢ Initiated and implemented on-line patient registration process and automated attendant resulting in
net operational savings of 3.5%.
¢ Implemented a new Outpatient Treatment Report to reign in escalating outpatient claims costs
resulting in clinical savings of 4.5%. ,
e Met aggressive budget requirements by implementing tighter monitors on inpatient utilization
resulting in a net savings of 10.6%.
¢ Brought credentialing process in-house resulting in a 66% reduction in operating costs.
¢ Initiated and successfully implemented a complete overhaul of the utilization management
program resulting in improved NCQA delegation scoring from the low 60’s to 100 percent.
¢ Collaborated with the director of information and technology to develop and implement a provider
Web portal allowing providers to submit updated clinical information directly to BHN/Landmark
Solutions’.

CNR Health, Inc. Milwaukee, WI August 1991 — September 1998
A national company offering medical, behavioral health, disability, and worker’s compensation management services, employee
assistance programs, and software development.
Director of Case Management
Directly responsible for the care management business unit including medical and behavioral health
utilization management, case management, disability management and workers compensation
management.
Accomplishments
+ Numerous positions of increasing responsibility during seven-year tenure: Behavioral Health Case
Manager, Clinical Operations Manager, Director of Behavioral Health, Director of Case
Management.
s Directly responsible for a $2.5 million dollar operating budget.

North Dakota State University, Fargo, ND
Bachelor of Science in Psychology, 5/87
Minor: Statistics

Marquette University, Milwaukee, WI|

Master of Science in Clinical Psychology, 8/89

Thesis: Self-control deficits in depression: The contingent relationship between expectancies, evaluations
and reinforcements.

ik =
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Brian Collins
Kathleen Stocker

Christopher Kozak

Job Title

Executive Director
Chief Financial Officer

Chief Operations Officer

Community Partners

Key Personnel

Salary % Paid from Amount Paid from
this Contract this Contract

$185,000 0 0

$ 99,000 0 0

$ 80,000 0 0



FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 1/09)

Subject: Continuum of Care
AGREEMENT
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2  State Agency Address
Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant St.
Office of Human Services Concord, NH 03301
1.3  Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address

122 Market St.
Families In Transition Manchester, NH 03101
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6  Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8  Price Limitation
Number 010-042-7927-102-0731
(603) 641-9441 June 30, 2015 $127,746
1.9  Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Eric D. Borrin (603) 271-9558
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
"’YW QUAALAN &M
- Maureen Beauregard, President

1.13  Acknowledgement: State of NH  County of Hillsborough

On 3/ 2 8 ¥dfdre the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1.12, or satisfactorily proven to be the
person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated in block
1.12.

1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

RUTH A. SYREK, Notary Public
- - My Commission Expires October 16, 2018
[Seal e

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary of Justice of the Peace

Ruth Syrek, Admin Asst. Notary Public |

1.14 State Agency Signatur ~ 1.15 Name and Title of State Agency Signatory —
, , mm Ana Ccao«uﬂ
W s way W
/7 /4'5 Soc. Al g / Vi AL S BNV

1.16 Approvalw N.H. Departmen(qf/:(dnﬁnistration, Division of Personnel (if applia;lile)

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney Gengral (Form, Substance and Execution)
By; /ZW") : On: v"/7-l(/

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Executive Council

By: On:
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2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 (“State”), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
(“Services”).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, this
Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall
not become effective until the date the Governor and
Executive Council approve this Agreement (“Effective Date”).
3.2 If the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
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5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. In addition, the Contractor shall comply with all
applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.

6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (“Equal
Employment Opportunity”), as supplemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this
Agreement. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer’s decision shall be final for the State.

Contractor Initials:_ﬂngQ
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8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(“Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. Disclosure of data requires
prior written approval of the State.

10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report (“Termination Report”) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
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Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

11. CONTRACTOR’S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers’ compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of
the N.H. Department of Administrative Services. None of the
Services shall be subcontracted by the Contractor without the
prior written consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $250,000 per claim and $2,000,000 per
occurrence; and

14.1.2 fire and extended coverage insurance covering all
property subject to subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Department of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New
Hampshire.

14.3 The Contractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the
expiration date of each of the insurance policies. The
certificate(s) of insurance and any renewals thereof shall be
attached and are incorporated herein by reference. Each

Contractor Initials: /l/a@
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certificate(s) of insurance shall contain a clause requiring the
insurer to endeavor to provide the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, no less than ten
(10) days prior written notice of cancellation or modification
of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(“Workers’ Compensation”).

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers’ Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall furnish
the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his or her
successor, proof of Workers’ Compensation in the manner
described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any applicable
renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Workers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement is
the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.
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20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement are
for reference purposes only, and the words contained therein
shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or aid in
the interpretation, construction or meaning of the provisions of
this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set forth
in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor Initials: M
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Continuum of Care Program

1. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT

1.1.

Notwithstanding any provisions of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the
State are contingent upon receipt of federal funds under the Continuum of Care Grant.
The State has applied for the Continuum of Care Grant and will continue to perform due
diligence in the application process. However, the State makes no representation that it
will receive the funds. In no event shall the State be liable for costs incurred or
payment of any services performed by the Contractor prior to the State’s receipt of
federal funds applied for in the Continuum of Care Grant.

2. SERVICES

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

24.

2.5.

Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds from the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Continuum of Care Program, the Contractor
shall provide a permanent housing program that shall serve twelve (12) homeless
individuals and/or families with disabilities.

The goal of this program is to facilitate the movement of homeless individuals to
permanent housing and maximum self-sufficiency.

To be eligible for contract services, individuals must be homeless as defined in HUD
regulations. The Contractor must obtain and retain appropriate documentation.

The Contractor shall provide these services according to HUD regulations as outlined in
Public Law 102-550, 24 CFR Part 578 Homeless Emergency Assistance and Rapid
Transition to Housing: Continuum of Care Program interim rule, and other written HUD
policies and directives.

Each program participant shall have an employment assessment and employment
goals included in the individual service plan, as appropriate.

3. PROGRAM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

3.1.

3.2.

The Contractor shall submit the following reports:

3.1.1. Annual Performance Report: Within thirty (30) days after the Completion Date,
an Annual Performance Report (APR) shall be submitted to the BHHS that
summarizes the results of the Project Activities, showing in particular how the
Project Activities have been performed. The Annual Performance Report shall
be in the form required or specified by the State.

3.1.2. Other Reports as requested by the State.

All programs under this contract are required to be licensed to provide client level data
into the New Hampshire Homeless Management Information System (NH HMIS).
Programs under this contract must be familiar with and follow NH HMIS policy, including
specific information that is required for data entry, accuracy of data entered, and time
required for data entry. Current NH HMIS policy can be accessed electronically through
the following website: http://www.nh-hmis.org.

Families in Transition Exhibit A Contractor Initiats _w
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Continuum of Care Program

Exhibit A

3.3. Failure to submit the above reports or enter data into NH-HMIS in a timely fashion could
resuit in the delay or withholding of reimbursements until such reports are received or
data entries are confirmed by the BHHS.

4. CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION

4.1. The Contractor shall have appropriate levels of staff attend all meetings or trainings
requested by the BHHS. To the extent possible, BHHS shall notify the contractor of the
need to attend such meetings five working days in advance of each meeting.

4.2. The Bureau Administrator of BHHS or designee may observe performance, activities
and documents under this Agreement; however, these personnel may not unreasonably
interfere with contractor performance.

4.3. The Contractor shall inform BHHS of any staffing changes.

4.4. Contract records shall be retained for a period of five (5) years following completion of
the contract and receipt of final payment by the Contractor, or until an audit is
completed and all questions arising there from are resolved, whichever is later.

4.5. Changes to the contract services that do not affect its scope, duration, or financial
limitations may be made upon mutual agreement between the Contractor and the
BHHS.

5. FINANCIAL

5.1. Based on the continued receipt/availability of federal funds, the Contractor shall utilize
Continuum of Care Program agreement value specified in Exhibit B of this agreement
f